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13.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the quarterly period ended: September 30, 2016

2. SEC Identification Number: A199813754

3. BIR Tax Identification No: 201-277-095

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter: PUREGOLD PRICE CLUB, INC.

B C e e e 6. (SEC Use Only)

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization

7. 2IF Tabacalera Building, No. 900 Romualdez St.,
Paco, Manila 1007
Address of principal office Postal Code

8. (632) 882-8801-04 / (632) 523-3055
Issuer's telephone number, including area code

9. N/A
Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the
RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding

and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common Shares 2,765,381,406

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange.
Yes [/] No [ ]

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein: PHILIPPINE
STOCK EXCHANGE - COMMON SHARE

12. Check whether the issuer:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1 thereunder
or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes [/] No [ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [/] No [ ]

State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant. The
aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock was sold, or the
average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to the date
of filing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be made
without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of the common stock
held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable under the
circumstances, provided the assumptions are set forth in this Form.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
13. If any of the following documents are incorporated by reference.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AND PLAN OF OPERATION
ANNEX “A” - CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

The following should be read in conjunction with the accompanying interim financial statements
and notes thereto which form part of this Quarterly Report. The interim financial statements and
notes thereto have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

Please see attached SECTION A

particularly PAS 34, Interim Financial Statements.

Top Key Performance Indicators

The following are the financial soundness indicators used by the Group as at September 30 and

December 31 and for the nine-month periods ended September 30:
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Current Ratio ("

Asset to Equity Ratio @
Debt to Equity Ratio ©®

Debt to Total Assets Ratio ®
Book Value per Share ©

Price Earnin s Ratio ©
* Based on annualized EPS

Earnings per Share
Return on Assets @
Return on E uit ©

Current Assets over Current Liabilities
Total Assets over Total Equity

Total Liabilities over Total Equity
Total Liabilities over Total Assets

September
2016

1.99:1
1.40:1
0.40:1
0.29:1
P15.21
*24.18x

September
2016

P1.32

6.2%

9.1%

Total Equity over Total Common Shares Outstanding

Market Value per Share over Earnings per Share
Net income after tax over Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding

Net income after tax over Average Total Assets

Net income after tax over Average Total Equity

December
2015

1.58:1
1.53:1
0.53:1
0.35:1
P13.89
19.19x

September
2015
P1.16
6.0%

8.9%



I. Results of Operations

For the period ended September 30, 2016, the Group earned a consolidated net income of P3,645
million at 4.6% net margin and an increase of 13.8% from P3,203 million at 4.8% net margin in the
same period of 2015. This was principally driven by the continuous expansion of the Group both
organic as well as strategic acquisitions and investments and combined management strategies and
programs to boost revenue contributions from both the base stores as well as new stores
complemented by sustained operating efficiencies and strategic costs controls on operating expenses
at its current level.

The Group’s comparative financial results for the nine-month and three-month periods are
presented below:

For the Nine-month Periods For the Three-month Periods

Ended Se tember 30 Jul 1to Se tember 30

in millions 2016 2015 2016 2015
% to % to % % to % to
Sales Sales Chan Sales Sales
Net Sales P78,737 100.0% P67,334 100.0% 16.9% P27,680 100.0% P24,191 100.0%
Cost of Sales 65,834 83.6% 56,091 83.3% 17.4% 23,061 83.3% 20,171 83.4%
Gross Profit 12,904 16.4% 11,243 16.7% 14.8% 4,618 16.7% 4,020 16.6%
Other O eratin Income 2,272 2.8% 2,061 3.1% 10.2% 791 2.8% 724 3.0%
Gross Income 15,175 19.3% 13,304 19.8% 14.1% 5,409 18.5% 4,743 19.6%
O eratin Ex 9,812 12.6% 8,727 13.0% 13.6% 3,415 12.3% 3,026 12.5%
Operating Income 5,263 6.7% 4,578 6.8% 15.0% 1,993 7.2% 1,718 71%
Other income ex enses (74 0.1% 29 0.0% 151.1% (30) -0.1% 18 -0.1%
Net Income before tax 5,189 6.6% 4,548 6.8% 14.1% 1,964 7.1% 1,700 7.0%
Income tax ex ense 1,544 2.0% 1345 2.0% 14.7% 585 2.1% 503 21%
Net Income after tax P3,645 4.6% P3,203 4.8% 13.8% P1,378 5.0% P1,196 4.9%

Net Sales

For the period ended September 30, 2016, the Group posted a consolidated net sales of P78,737
million for an increase of P11,403 million or a growth of 16.9% compared to P67,334 million in the
same period of 2015. New stores put up in 2015 were fully operating in 2016 increasing
consolidated net sales in addition to robust like for like stores sales growth and revenue
contributions from new organic stores/outlets put up as well as acquisitions made in 2015.

Like for like sales performance indicators for the period ended September 30 are as follow:

PGOLD S&R
2016 2015 2016 2015
Net Sales 6.6% 3.6% 1.4% -1.5%
Net Ticket 6.5% 57% 1.0% -3.6%
Traffic 0.2% -2.0% 2.5% 2.2%



Gross Profit

For the period ended September 30, 2016, the Group realized an increase of 14.8% in consolidated
gross profit from P11,243 million in 2015 at 16.7% margin to P12,904 million at 16.4% margin in
the same period of 2015, driven by strong sales growth from new and old stores and sustained
continuing suppliers' support through additional trade discounts in the form of rebates and
conditional discounts granted during the period.

Other Operating Income

Other operating income increased by P211 million or 10.2% from P2,061 million in the first half of
2015 to P2,272 million in the same period of 2016. This is attributable to increase in display
allowance, listing fee and other supplier supports driven mainly by new stores offering new spaces
for product displays and booths for third party retailers, new product listings and other promotions
to increase customer and supplier’s supports.

Gross Operating Income
Gross operating income realized during the nine months of 2016 amounted to P15,175 at a gross
operating margin of 19.3% which grew by 14.1% from the 2015 level of P13,304 at 19.8% margin.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased by P1,186 million or 13.6% from P8,727 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2015 to P9,912 million in the same period of 2016. The incremental
operating expenses were mainly attributable to manpower costs, as well as rent expenses covering
new lease contracts, depreciation expense and taxes, all related to the establishment and operation
of new organic and acquired stores.

Other Expense - net
Other expenses net of other income amounted to P74 million and P29 million for the nine-month

periods ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Interest expense increased in September
2016 due to additional loans availed in late 2015 and for the nine-month period ended September
30, 2016.

Net Income

For the period ended September 30, 2016, the Group earned a consolidated net income of P3,645
million at 4.6% net margin and an increase of 13.8% from P3,203 million at 4.8% net margin in the
same period of 2015.



II. Financial Condition

The Group’s consolidated statements of financial position as at September 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 are presented below:

Se tember 2016 December 2015

% to % to
Total Total %

(In millions Assets Assets Chan e
Cash & cash equivalents P1,181 2.0% P6,246 10.6% 81.1%
Receivables — net 2,731 4.6% 2,683 4.6% 1.8%
Merchandise inventory 16,472 27.9% 12,983 22.1% 26.9%
Investments in trading securities 37 0.1% 34 0.1% 8.3%
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 1,123 1.9% 1,067 1.8% 5.2%
Total Current Assets 21,544 36.6% 23,014 39.1% -6.4%
Investments and acquisitions of
subsidiaries 868 1.5% 868 1.5% 0.0%
Property and equipment - net 15,474 26.3% 14,034 23.8% 10.3%
Intangibles and goodwill 19,553 33.2% 19,521 33.2% 0.2%
Other noncurrent assets 1,504 2.6% 1,406 2.4% 6.9%
Total Noncurrent Assets 37,399 63.4% 35,829 60.9% 4.4%

P58,943 100.0% P58 844 100.0% 0.2%
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 6,043 10.3% 9,778 16.6% -38.2%
Short-term loans payable 3,688 6.3% 3,138 5.3% 17.5%
Income tax payable 612 1.0% 759 1.3% -19.5%
Trust receipts payable 0.0% 5 0.0% -100.0%
Due to related parties 30 0.1% 30 0.1% 0.6%
Current maturities of long-term
loans, net of debt issue costs 120 0.2% 570 1.0% -78.9%
Other current liabilities 346 0.6% 327 0.6% 5.7%
Total Current Liabilities 10,838 18.4% 14,606 24.8% -25.8%
Noncurrent accrued rent 2,795 4.7% 2,493 4.2% 12.1%
Long-term loans - net of current
maturities and debt issue costs 2,397 41% 2,395 4.1% 0.1%
Deferred tax liabilities — net 417 0.7% 496 0.8% -15.9%
Retirement benefits liabilit 440 0.7% 440 0.7% 0.0%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,048 10.3% 5,824 9.9% 3.9%
Total Liabilities P16,886 28.6% P20,430 34.7% 17.3%
Capital stock 2,785 4.7% 2,785 4.7% 0.0%
Additional paid in capital 20,830 35.3% 20,830 35.4% 0.0%
Remeasurements of retirement
hiability - net of tax (1) 0.0% %)) 0.0% 0.0%
Treasury stock — at cost (57) -0.1% (57) -0.1% 0.0%
Retained earnin s 18,498 31.4% 14,855 25.2% 24.5%
Total E ui 42,057 71.4% 38,413 65.3% 9.5%

P58,943 100.0% P58,844 100.0% 0.2%

Working Capital

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group’s working capital stood at
P10,706 million and P8,408 million, respectively while its current ratio improved to 1.99
as at September 2016 from 1.58 as at December 2015.



Current Assets

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, total current assets amounted to
P21,544 million or 36.6% of total assets, and P23,014 million or 39.1% of total assets,
respectively, for a decrease of P1,471 million or 6.4% as at September 30, 2016.

Cash and cash equivalents as at September 30, 2016 amounted to P1,181 million or 2.0%
of total assets and decreased by P5,066 million or 81.1% compared to previous year-end
balance. Decrease in the Group’s cash position was attributable mainly to the net
settlement of trade and non-trade payables, payment for 2015 cash dividend, partial
settlement of loans and capital expenditures for 2016 new stores.

Receivables amounted to P2,731 million as at September 30, 2016 or 4.6% of total assets,
with an increase of P48 million or 1.8% from P2,683 million in December 2015,
representing nontrade receivables which include rent and other supplier support. This
account includes trade and non-trade receivables, net of P7 million allowance for
impairment losses.

Merchandise inventory amounted to P16,472 million or 27.9% of total assets at the end of
September 2016. Total inventory increased by P3,489 million or 26.9% principally due to
stocking requirements of existing and new operating stores. This also includes the
purchased inventory of S&R allocated for the 3-day sale, Members’ Treat, held last
September 30 to October 2, 2016.

Investments in trading securities amounted to P37 million as at September 30, 2016 and
P34 million in December 2015. The increase was due to recognition of unrealized gain on
changes in fair value of the investments.

Prepaid expenses and other current assets increased by P55 million or 5.2% due to
increase in prepaid expenses from availment of new policies for insurance of new stores,
creditable withholding tax and advance payment of rent for soon to open stores.

Noncurrent Assets

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, total noncurrent assets amounted to
P37,399 million or 63.4% of total assets, and P35,829 million or 60.9% of total assets,
respectively, for an increase of P1,570 million or 4.4% as at September 30, 2016.

Investments amounted to P868 million as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

Net book values of property and equipment increased by P1,440 million or 10.3% from
P14,034 million in December 2015 to P15,474 million in September 2016.

Intangibles amounted to P19,553 million as at September 30, 2016 and P19,521 million as
at December 31, 2015.

Other noncurrent assets amounted P1,504 million as at September 30, 2016 and P1,406
million as at December 31, 2015,



Current Liabilities

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, total current liabilities amounted to
P10,838 million or 18.4% of total assets, and P14,606 million or 24.8% of total assets,
respectively, for a decrease of P3,769 million or 25.8% as at September 30, 2016.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses decreased by P3,735 million or 38.2% primarily
due to settlement of trade and nontrade liabilities, bulk of which came from the high year
end payables and payment of cash dividend to stockholders.

Loans payable increased by P550 million or 17.5% from P3,138 million in December
2015 to P3,688 million in September 2016 due to net availment of short term loans during
the period.

Income tax payable decreased by P148 million from P759 million in December 2015 to
P612 million in September 2016 due to settlement of income tax liabilities in the year
ended December 2015 and 1* half of 2016.

Trust receipts payable was fully paid as at September 30, 2016.

Due to related parties, representing royalty fees, amounted to P30 million for the period
ended September 2016 and December 2015.

Current maturities of long term debt amounted to P120 million as at September 30, 2016.
The decrease was due to partial settlement of the loan amount during the period.

Other current liabilities increased by P19 million or 5.7% from P327 million in December
2015 to P346 million in September 2016 primarily due to increase in gift check liability
and other promotional activity fund.

Noncurrent Liabilities

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, total noncurrent liabilities amounted to
P6,048 million or 10.3% of total assets, and P5,824 million or 9.9% of total assets,
respectively, for an increase of P225 million or 3.9% as at September 30, 2016.

Noncurrent accrued rent increased by P302 million or 12.1% from P2,493 million in
December 2015 to P2,795 million in September 2016 due to recognition of rent expense
for lease contracts entered into by the Parent Company and its subsidiaries in compliance
with PAS 17 — Leases.

Deferred tax liabilities net of deferred tax assets amounted to P417 million and P496
million as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The decrease was
due to increase in deferred tax asset related to accrual of lease liability.

II1. Sources and Uses of Cash

The Group’s primary sources of liquidity are basically its net operating cash inflows
augmented by availments from banks loan facilities as and when required.

Principal uses of cash are working capital expenses, capital expenditures for stores
expansion as well as investments in strategic business acquisitions of existing and
operating supermarket store outlets.



A brief summary of cash flows during the comparative periods is shown below:

For the Nine-month Periods
Ended September 30

{In millions) 2016 2015
Net cash used in operating activities (P1,727) (P1,416)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,609) (3,094)
Net cash used in financing activities (730) (286)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (P5,066) (P4,796)

Net cash used in operating activities for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016
amounted to P1,727 million. This was mainly attributable to settlement of payables to both
trade and nontrade suppliers, purchase of inventories and other related current operating
items to support the Group’s expansion.

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016
amounted to P2,609 million. This was utilized for the acquisition of equipment, furniture
& fixtures, construction of buildings and improvements on leased assets as at the end of
the period.

Net cash used in financing activities for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016
amounted to P730 million. This pertains to payment of 2015 cash dividends to
stockholders amounting to P830 million and net settlement of loans during the period.

IV. Material Events and Uncertainties

There are no known trends or any known demands, commitments, events or uncertainties
that will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in the Group’s liquidity increasing
or decreasing in any material way.

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Group, including any default or acceleration of an obligation;

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Group with unconsolidated entities
or other persons created during the year.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures other than those performed in
the ordinary course of trade of business in line with the Group’s retail outlets expansion

program.

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material impact on the revenues or income from continuing operations.

There are no significant elements of income not arising from continuing operations.

The Group experiences the fourth quarter of the year as the peak season relating to
increased sales resulting from Christmas and New Year holidays.



SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Regulation Code, the {ssuer has duly caused
this Third Quarter Financial Statements of Puregold Price Club, Inc. and its subsidiaries for the
year 2016 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

November 11, 2016 in the City of Manila.

PURE LD PRICE CLUB, INC.

By:
FERDI INCENT P. CO
Preside
-
—
TEODO POLINGA

Comptroller
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PUREGOLD PRICE CLUB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015
and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
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PUREGOLD PRICE CLUB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 2016 December 2015
Note (Unaudited) Audited
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 P1,180,750,634 P6,246,493,017
Receivables — net 5 21 2,730,829,277 2,683,095,896
Merchandise inventory 6 16,472,082,170 12,982,832,312
Investments in trading securities 7 37,283,771 34,432,591
Pre aid ex enses and other current assets 8 1,122,810,833 1,067,412,107
Total Current Assets 21,543,756,685 23,014,265,923
Noncurrent Assets
Investments 9 868,090,606 868,090,606
Property and equipment — net 10 15,474,035,956 14,033,740,857
Intangibles and goodwill 11 19,553,173,054 19,521,120,953
Other noncurrent assets 12,17 1,503,926,720 1,406,322,979
Total Noncurrent Assets 37,399,226,336 35,829,275,395
P58,942,983,021 P58,843,541,318
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,21, 24 P6,042,977,785 P9,777,695,220
Short-term loans payable 14 3,687,500,000 3,137,500,000
Income tax payable 611,506,055 759,221,135
Trust receipts payable - 5,182,021
Due to related parties 21 29,940,868 29,769,412
Current maturities of long-term loans, net of debt issue costs 14 120,000,000 570,000,000
Other current liabilities 15 345737 95 327,126,019
Total Current Liabilities 10,837,662,103 14,606,493,807
Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent accrued rent 2,794,687,694 2,492,888,910
Long-term loans - net of current maturities and debt issue
costs 14 2,396,578,877 2,395,062,298
Deferred tax liabilities — net 23 417,324,103 496,007,867
Retirement benefits liabili 22 439,871,673 439,871,673
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,048,462,347 5,823,830,748
Total Liabilities 16,886,124,450 20,430,324,555
Equity
Capital stock 24 2,785,362,877 2,785,362,877
Additional paid-in capital 24 20,830,391,081 20,830,391,081
Remeasurements of retirement benefits liability - net of tax 22 (650,846) (650,846)
Treasury stock, at cost 24 (56,702,280) (56,702,280)
Retained earnin s 24 18,498,457 739 14,854,815,931
Total Equity 42,056,858,571 38,413,216,763
P58,942,983,021 P58,843,541,318

See Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements.



PUREGOLD PRICE CLUB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Unaudited)

For the Three-Month Periods

Note

NET SALES
Gross sales

Sales discount

COST OF SALES
GROSS PROFIT
OTHER OPERATING INCOME

6, 16, 29

18,29

OPERATING EXPENSES 19
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Interest income 4
Interest expense 14
Others — net 7,20

INCOME BEFORE INCOME
TAX

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current
Deferred

23
NET INCOME

Basic and diluted earnings per share 26

For the Nine-month Periods
Ended Se tember 30

2016

P78,890,951,613
153,620,808

78,737,330,805
65,833,567,971
12,903,762,834

2,271,593,134
15,175,355,968

9,912,497,916
5,262,858,052

10,163,979

(69,359,139)

14 884 912

(74,080,072)

5,188,777,980

1,630,213,343
86,506 415

1,543,706,928
P3,645,071,052
P1.32

See Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

2015

P67,469,892,693
135,696,070

67,334,196,623
56,090,908,908
11,243,287,715

2,060,829,536
13,304,117,251

8,726,540,968
4,577,576,283

16,216,205
(49,829,239)
4,113,561

(29,499,473)

4,548,076,810

1,434,396,404
89,106 208

1,345,290,196
P3,202.786.614

P1.16

Jul 1 to Se tember 30

2016

P27,731,940,766
52,354,184
27,679,586,582
23,061,444,207
4,618,142,375
790,634,250
5.408,776,625
3,415,479,254
1,993,297,371

1,079,067
(24,455,328)
6,289,230

(29,665,491)

1,963,631,880

615,713,621
30 34 24

585,379,097
P1,378,252,783
P0.50

2015

P24,239,813,530
48,631,97¢

24,191,181,554
20,171,443,649
4,019,737,905
723,754,719
4,743,492,624

3,025,694,572
1,717,798,052

2,564,525
(12,345,989)
8,212,740

(17,994,204)

1,699,803,848

535,076,611
31613,689

503,462,922
P1.196.340.926

PO.43
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PUREGOLD PRICE CLUB INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 10,11, 19
Rent expense in excess of billings
Interest expense 14
Share in results of joint ventures and associate 9
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 20
Dividend income 20
Unrealized valuation loss (gain) in trading securities 7,20
Interest income 4

Operating income before changes in working capital
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables
Investments in trading securities
Merchandise inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Trust receipts payable
Due to related parties 21
Other current liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes aid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property and equipment 10
Additions to investments
Increase in intangibles 11

Increase in other noncurrent assets
Dividends received

Proceeds from dis osal of and ¢ ui ment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of long-term loans payable 14
Payment of short-term loans payable

Availment of short-term loans payable 14
Payments for treasury shares 24
Cash dividends aid 24

Net cash used in financing activities
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR

See Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

Periods Ended Se tember 30

2016

P5,188,777,980

1,041,680,399
301,798,784
69,359,139

(849,991)
(2,851,179)
10,163,979

6,587,751,153

(54,629,173)

(3,489,249,858)
(55,398,728)

(2,902,068,549)
(5,182,021)
171,456
18,611,376
100,005,656
10,163,979
(72,393,605)
1,764,639 21

(1,726,863,191)
(2,460,587,459)
(53,947,993)
(97,603,741)

849,991
2024432

(2,609,264,770)

(450,000,000
(930,000,000)
1,480,000,000

829 614 422
(729,614,422)

(5,065,742,383)
6,246,493,017

P1,180,750,634

2015

P4,548,076,810

943,081,579
313,733,303
49,829,239
(20,050,582)
423,262
(892,591)
3,913,185
16,216,205
5,821,898,000

145,390,540
(837,092)
(1,687,245,082)
(405,030,590)

(3,648,701,533)
1,573,230

(423,446)
84,143,825
142,480,202
16,216,205

(47,639,986)
1,527,305,405

(1,416,248,984)

(1,948,232,466)
(50,000,000)
(973,977,363)
(139,213,034)
892,591
16,569 666

(3,093,960,606)

(433,700,000)

(583,500,000)

1,577,500,000
(16,794,741)
829,614 422

(286,109,163)

(4,796,318,753)
6,758,425,910

P1,962,107,157



PUREGOLD PRICE CLUB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

Puregold Price Club, Inc. (the “Parent Company”) was incorporated and registered with
the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on September 8, 1998. Its
shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) since October 5, 2011 with
stock symbol of PGOLD. Its immediate and ultimate parent company is Cosco Capital,
Inc. (Cosco) which is incorporated in the Philippines. Cosco is formerly named Alcorn
Gold Resources Corporation and is also listed with the PSE since September 26, 1998.

The Parent Company is principally involved in the business of trading goods such as
consumer products (canned goods, housewares, toiletries, dry goods, food products,
pharmaceutical and medical goods, etc.) on a wholesale and retail basis. Its registered
office is located at 900 Romualdez Street, Paco, Manila.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and
the following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group™) which are all
incorporated in the Philippines:

Percenta e of Ownershi

2016 2015
Kareila Management Corporation (KMC)® 100 100
S&R Pizza (Harbor Point), Inc. @ 100 100
PPCI Subic, Inc. (PS))® 100 100
Entenso Equities Incorporated (Entenso) © 100 100
Goldtempo Company Incorporated (Goldtempo) © 100 100
Daily Commodities, Inc. (DCI) ® 100 100
First Lane Su er Traders Co., Inc. FLSTCI ® 100 100

(a) Operator of S&R Membership Shopping; incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC in 2004, acquired by
the Parent Company on May 28, 2012 through a Share Swap Agreement (see Note 9).

() Incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC on May 31, 2012 and started commercial operations on
September 20, 2012 (see Note 9).

(c) Incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC on May 22, 2013 as a holding company (see Note 9).

(d) A wholly-owned subsidiary of KMC incorporated on May 25, 2015 (see Note 9).

(e) Acquired on August 26, 2015 through Entenso which subsequently acquired the significant assets of Bargain City,
Inc. Multi-Merchantrade Inc. and Superplus Corporation. (see Note 9).

()  Acquired on February 3, 2015 through Entenso through a stock acquisition (see Note 9).

All subsidiaries are engaged in the same business as the Parent Company except for
Entenso whose primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, subscribed for, or otherwise
acquire and own, hold, use, develop, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or
otherwise dispose real and personal property of every kind of description.

Ac uisition of Com an E

On January 14, 2013, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the acquisition of Company
E (the company behind the Eunilaine Foodmart and Grocer E Supermart chains) via
share acquisition.

Ac uisition of Entenso

On July 3, 2013, the Parent Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the
acquisition of Entenso’s entire outstanding capital stock. On the same day, Entenso’s
BOD approved the increase in Entenso’s authorized capital stock from PS5 million divided



into 50,000 shares at P100 par value to P1 billion divided into 10,000,000 shares at P100
par value.

Ac uisition of Subic

The Parent Company invested P3.13 million in PPCI Subic Inc., an entity incorporated in
the Philippines on May 31, 2012. The investment represents 100% of the issued capital
stock of Subic (see Note 9).

Ac uisition of Kareila

On May 28, 2012, the Parent Company issued 766,406,250 new common shares, with P1
par value, from its own authorized but unissued capital in exchange for 1,703,125
common shares, with P100 par value per share of Kareila representing 100% of its
outstanding capital stock (see Note 9). The fair market value of the Parent Company’s
shares based on the observable market price as at the date of acquisition is P21.50 per
share or P16,477.73 million.

Mer er with Com an E

On March 25, 2014, the BOD approved the merger of Company E Corporation with the
Parent Company. It was then ratified by at least two-thirds (2/3) votes of the stockholders
on May 13, 2014 during the annual stockholders’ meeting. On March 12, 2015, the Plan
and Articles of Merger by and between the Parent Company and Company E Corporation
was approved by SEC. Effective April 1, 2015, the entire assets and liabilities of
Company E Corporation were transferred to and absorbed by the Parent Company.

Salient features of the Plan of Merger are as follows:

= The Parent Company shall be the surviving entity and the existence of Company E
shall cease. The effective date of the merger shall be the date when the SEC approves
and issues the Certificate of Merger.

= All the assets, rights, powers, privileges, immunities, franchises and businesses of
Company E as at the effective date of the merger, shall be deemed assigned,
transferred to and vested to the Parent Company as discussed per Section 80(A) of
the Corporation Code, without need of any further act or deed.

= Upon the effective date of merger, the Parent Company shall assume all outstanding
liabilities, obligations and undertakings of Company E as at the effective date of
merger.

= All issued and outstanding capital stock of Company E on the effective date of the
merger shall be cancelled but no new shares of stock shall be issued to the
stockholders of Company E considering that the constituent entity is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Parent Company. The net assets of Company E shall form part of
the retained earnings of the Parent Company as the surviving entity.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Com liance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB). PFRSs which are issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC), consist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), and
Philippine Interpretations.



Basis of Measurement
The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis of accounting, except for:

Items Measurement Bases
Investments in trading securities Fair value
Retirement benefits liability Present value of defined benefit

obli ation less fair value of the lan asset

Functional and Presentation Currenc

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is also the
Parent Company’s functional currency. All financial information expressed in Philippine
peso has been rounded off to the nearest peso, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Jud ents Estimates and Assum tions

The Group’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRSs
require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and
assumptions could result in an outcome that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the affected asset or liability in the future.

Jud ments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Classifying Financial Instruments

The Group exercises judgments in classifying a financial instrument, or its component
parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the
definitions of a financial asset or liability. The substance of a financial instrument, rather
than its legal form, governs its classification in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

In addition, the Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the
asset is quoted or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a
financial asset is quoted in an active market is the determination on whether the quoted
prices are readily and regularly available and whether those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale (AFS) financial assets. Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified as either
financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities.

Determining the Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or most advantageous market
must be accessible to the Group.



The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

» Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing the categorization at the end of each reporting period.

‘Day 1’ Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the
fair value from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable
market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and the fair
value (a ‘Day 1’ profit) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other
type of asset. In cases where data used is not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the
Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ profit amount.

The determination of fair values of the Group’s financial instruments is presented in
Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Assessing Joint Arrangements

The Group determines the type of joint arrangement in which it is involved by
considering its rights and obligations. An entity assesses its rights and obligations by
considering the structure and legal form of the arrangement, the contractual terms agreed
to by the parties to the arrangement and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances.
Joint arrangements is classified into two types: joint operations and joint ventures. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e., joint operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e., joint venturers) have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

The Group has determined that its investments in joint arrangements are classified as
investments in joint ventures.



As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the carrying amount of its
investments in joint ventures amounted to P432.40 million (see Note 9).

Distinction between Investment Property and Property and Equipment

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its
judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by the Group. Property and equipment or owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the property but
also to the other assets used in the production or supply process.

The Group has determined that its properties are classified as owner-occupied properties.

Assessing Lease Agreements

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at inception date and requires assessment of whether the
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Operating Leases - Group as a Lessee

The Group has entered into various lease agreements as a lessee. The Group has
determined that the lessor retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out under operating lease arrangements.

Rent expense recognized in profit or loss amounted to P1,844.14 million, and P1,685.34
million in September 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Notes 17 and 19).

Operating Leases - Group as a Lessor

The Group has entered into various lease agreements as a lessor to sublease portion of its
stores to various lessees. The Group has determined that the lessor retains all significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out under operating
lease arrangements.

Rent income recognized in profit or loss amounted to P282.35 million and P281.08
million in September 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Notes 17 and 18).

Assessment of Computer Software and Licenses and Leasehold Rights

The Group acquired computer software and licenses and leasehold rights to be used for
its primary line of business. Based on the following attributes, the Group assessed that
the computer software and licenses and leasehold rights are intangible assets since:
(1) these are separable; in the case of computer software and licenses, these are not
integral part of the related hardware, thus, the Group can sell the software and licenses
individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability, and (2) they arose from
contractual or other legal rights.

Estimates

The key estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements are
based on management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting
date. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for impairment losses on receivables at a level
considered adequate to provide for uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance
is evaluated by the Group on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the
accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Group’s
relationship with debtors and, their payment behavior and known market factors. The
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Group reviews the age and status of the receivable, and identifies accounts that are to be
provided with allowance on a regular basis. The amount and timing of recorded expenses
for any period would differ if the Group made different judgment or utilized different
estimates. An increase in the Group’s allowance for impairment losses on receivables
would increase the Group’s recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.

The allowance for impairment losses on receivables amounted to P7.46 million as at
September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015. The Group did not recognize an additional
allowance for impairment losses on receivables because the Group believes that all
outstanding receivables are recoverable. The carrying amount of receivables amounted to
P2,730.83 million and P2,683.10 million as at September 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively (see Note 5).

Estimating Net Realizable Value (NRV) of Merchandise Inventory

The Group carries merchandise inventory at NRV whenever the selling price less costs to
sell becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence,
changes in price levels or other causes (i.e., pre-termination of contracts). The estimate of
the NRYV is reviewed regularly.

Estimates of NRV are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the
estimates are made on the amount the inventories are expected to be realized. These
estimates take into consideration fluctuations of prices or costs directly relating to events
occurring after reporting date to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at
reporting date. The NRV is reviewed periodically to reflect the accurate valuation in the
financial records.

The carrying amount of merchandise inventory amounted to P16,472.08 million and
P12,982.83 million as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively (see
Note 6).

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the period over
which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of
property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

In addition, the estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment is based on
collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience
with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated
useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded operating expenses and
decrease noncurrent assets.

Depreciation and amortization recognized in profit or loss amounted to P1,019.76 million
and P925.30 million in September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 10 and 19).
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, amounted to P15,474.04
million and P14,033.74 million as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
respectively (see Note 10).

Estimating Useful Lives of Computer Software and Licenses and Leasehold Rights

The Group estimates the useful lives and amortization methods of computer software and
licenses and leasehold rights based on the period and pattern in which the assets’ future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. The estimated useful lives
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and amortization period of computer software and licenses and leasehold rights are
reviewed at each reporting date and are updated if there are changes in the expected
useful lives or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the computer software and licenses and leasehold rights. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought
about by changes in the assumptions used.

Amortization recognized in profit or loss amounted to P21.90 million and P17.78 million
in September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 11 and 19). Net carrying value of
computer software and licenses and leasehold rights amounted to P235.93 million and
P237.92 million as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively (see
Note 11).

Impairment of Goodwill, Trademarks and Customer Relationships with Indefinite Lives

The Group determines whether goodwill, trademarks and customer relationships are
impaired at least annually. This requires the estimation of the recoverable amounts of the
goodwill, trademarks and customer relationships. Estimating recoverable amounts
requires management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit to which the goodwill, trademarks and customer relationships relate
and to choose a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

The carrying amounts of goodwill, trademarks and customer relationships with indefinite
useful lives amounted to P19,317.24 million and P19,283.20 million as at September 30,
2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. (see Note 11).

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduces the carrying
amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. The Group reviews
its projected performance in assessing the sufficiency of future taxable income.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due.
The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years
based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretation of tax law and prior
experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a
series of judgments about future events. New information may become available that
causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax
liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a
determination is made.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

PFRSs require that an impairment review be performed on non-financial assets other than
merchandise inventory and deferred tax assets when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Determining the recoverable
amount of assets requires estimation of cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets. While it is believed that the
assumptions used in the estimation of recoverable amounts are appropriate and
reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the
assessment of recoverable amounts and any resulting impairment loss could have a
material adverse impact on the Group’s results of operations.

There were no impairment losses on property and equipment and other non-financial
assets recognized in September 2016 and December 2015.



Estimating Retirement Benefits Liability and Cost

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of retirement benefits is dependent
on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts.
Those assumptions include among others, discount rate and salary increase rates.
Remeasurements of the retirement benefits liability are recognized in other
comprehensive income and comprise of actuarial gains and losses on the retirement
benefit obligation, return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest of
the pension benefit obligation and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling.

Retirement benefits liability amounted to P439.87 million as at September 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 (see Note 22).

Estimating Provisions and Contingencies

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, sets up appropriate provisions for its
present legal or constructive obligations in accordance with its policies on provisions and
contingencies. In recognizing and measuring provisions, management takes risks and
uncertainties into account.

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group does not have any
contingent legal or constructive obligation that requires provision.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these consolidated financial statements, except for the change in accounting
policy as explained below.

Ado tion of New or Revised Standards Amendments to Standards and Inte retations
The Group has adopted the following relevant and applicable amendments starting
January 1, 2015 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as otherwise
indicated, the adoption of these amendments did not have any significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

s Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to PAS 19). The
amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The objective of the amendments is to simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of years of employee service, for
example, employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage
of salary.

®  Annual Improvements to PFRSs: 2010 - 2012 and 2011 - 2013 Cycles - Amendments
were made to a total of nine standards, with changes made to the standards on
business combinations and fair value measurement in both cycles. Earlier application
is permitted, in which case the related consequential amendments to other PFRSs
would also apply. Special transitional requirements have been set for amendments to
the following standards: PFRS 2, PAS 16, PAS 38 and PAS 40. The following are
the said improvements or amendments to PFRSs, none of which has a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group:

e Classification and measurement of contingent consideration (Amendments to
PFRS 3). The amendments clarify the classification and measurement of
contingent consideration in a business combination. When contingent



consideration is a financial instrument, its classification as a liability or equity is
determined by reference to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, rathei
than to any other PFRSs. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is always subsequently measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss.

Consequential amendments are also made to PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and PFRS 9, Financial Instruments to prohibit
contingent consideration from subsequently being measured at amortized cost. In
addition, PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets is
amended to exclude provisions related to contingent consideration.

o Scope exclusion for the formation of joint arrangements (Amendment to PFRS 3).
PFRS 3 has been amended to clarify that the standard does not apply to the
accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangements in PFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements - i.e. including joint operations - in the financial statements of the
joint arrangements themselves.

o Definition of ‘related party’ (Amendment to PAS 24). The definition of a
‘related party’ is extended to include a management entity that provides key
management personnel (KMP) services to the reporting entity, either directly or
through a group entity. For related party transactions that arise when KMP
services are provided to a reporting entity, the reporting entity is required to
separately disclose the amounts that it has recognized as an expense for those
services that are provided by a management entity; however, it is not required to
‘look through’ the management entity and disclose compensation paid by the
management entity to the individuals providing the KMP services. The reporting
entity will also need to disclose other transactions with the management entity
under the existing disclosure requirements of PAS 24 - e.g. loans.

Standards Issued but Not Yet Ado ted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods
beginning after January 1, 2015. However, the Group has not applied these new or
amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise
stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Effective July 1, 2016

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments to
PFRS 11). The amendments require business combination accounting to be applied
to acquisitions of interests in a joint operation that constitutes a business. Business
combination accounting also applies to the acquisition of additional interests in a
joint operation while the joint operator retains joint control. The additional interest
acquired will be measured at fair value. The previously held interests in the joint
operation will not be remeasured.

The amendments place the focus firmly on the definition of a business, because this
is key to determining whether the acquisition is accounted for as a business
combination or as the acquisition of a collection of assets. As a result, this places
pressure on the judgment applied in making this determination.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016. Early adoption is permitted.



Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments
to PAS 16 and PAS 38). The amendments to PAS 38, Intangible Assets introduce a
rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortization methods for
intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when
revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue.

The amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment explicitly state that
revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and
equipment. This is because such methods reflect factors other than the consumption
of economic benefits embodied in the asset - e.g. changes in sales volumes and
prices.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016, and are to be applied prospectively. Early application is permitted.

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments to PFRS 10,
PFRS 12 and PAS 28) clarifies that:

e A subsidiary that provides investment-related services should not be
consolidated if the subsidiary itself is an investment entity.

e The exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements for an
intermediate held by an investment entity, even though the investment entity
does not consolidate the intermediate.

e When applying the equity method to an associate or a joint venture, a
non-investment entity investor in an investment entity may retain the fair value
measurement applied by the associate or joint venture to its interests in
subsidiaries.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016. Early adoption is permitted.

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to PAS 1) addresses some concerns expressed
about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure that entities are
able to use judgment when applying PAS 1. The amendments clarify that:

¢ Information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial
information.

e Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure.

e The list of line items to be presented in the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income can be disaggregated
and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these
statements.

e An entity’s share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures

should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it
will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.
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The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016. Early adoption is permitted.

Effective January 1, 2018

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and supersedes the previously published
versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and measurement
requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013).
PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
assets, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment,
guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities measured at fair value and
supplements the new general hedge accounting requirements published in 2013.
PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting requirements that represent a major
overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant improvements by aligning
the accounting more closely with risk management.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces PAS 11, Construction
Contracts, PAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 18
Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions
Involving Advertising Services. The new standard introduces a new revenue
recognition model for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue should
be recognized when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a
customer at the amount to which the company expects to be entitled. Depending on
whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time, in a manner that
best reflects the company’s performance, or at a point in time, when control of the
goods or services is transferred to the customer. The standard does not apply to
insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the scope
of other PFRS:s. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of business
exchange non-monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a
contract with a customer is partly in the scope of another IFRS, then the guidance on
separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.

However, the FRSC has yet to issue/approve this new revenue standard for local
adoption pending completion of a study by the Philippine Interpretations Committee
on its impact on the real estate industry. If approved, the standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

To be Adopted on January 1, 2019

PFRS 16, Leases supersedes PAS 17, Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing the
lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains unchanged
except for a number of details including the application of the new lease definition,
new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and new disclosure
requirements. Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were introduced including an
optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases with a term of 12 months or
less) and low-value items, as well as the permission of portfolio-level accounting
instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. New estimates and
judgmental thresholds that affect the identification, classification and measurement
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of lease transactions, as well as requirements to reassess certain key estimates and
judgments at each reporting date were introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier
application is not permitted until the FRSC has adopted PFRS 15.

The Group will assess the impact of the above new and revised standards and
amendments to standards on the separate financial statements upon their adoption on
their respective effective dates.

Basis of Consolidation

Business Combinations Under Common Control

Business combinations arising from transfer of interest in entities under control are
accounted for using the pooling of interest method, prospectively from the acquisition
date as allowed under PIC Q&A 2012-01. Under the prospective pooling of interest
method, the assets and liabilities acquired are recognized at the book values or carrying
amounts recognized in the acquiree’s stand alone financial statements from the
acquisition date. The difference between the book value of net assets acquired and the
consideration paid or equity instruments issued is recognized in equity, under retained
earnings. The profit or loss of the acquirees are consolidated from the acquisition date.
Comparative periods are not restated.

Business Combinations other than Under Common Control

Business combinations and acquisition of entities other than those under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date — i.e. when
control is transferred to the Group.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
» The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
® The recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire; plus

= if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing
equity interest in the acquire; less

= the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. In accordance with PFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has the rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.

Loss of Control

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
any non-controlling interests and other components of equity related to the subsidiary.
Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in profit or loss. If the
Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at
fair value on the date that control is lost. Subsequently, that retained interest is accounted
for as an equity-accounted investee or as an AFS financial asset depending on the level of
influence retained.
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Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets and liabilities, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements, in accordance with the
accounting policy on consolidation. Unrealized losses are eliminated unless costs cannot
be recovered.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets,
recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. The initial measurement of
financial instruments, except for those designated at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), includes directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets into the
following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, FVPL financial assets, and loans and receivables. The Group classifies
its financial liabilities as either FVPL financial liabilities or other financial liabilities. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired and whether
they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

The Group had no HTM investments and FVPL financial liabilities as at September 30,
2016 and December 31, 2015.

Financial Assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVPL and those classified under this category
through the fair value option.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated by management at initial recognition at FVPL or
reclassified under this category through fair value option, when any of the following
criteria is met:

= the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on a
different basis; or

» the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or

both which are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy; or
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» the financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no
analysis, that it would not be separately recognized.

The Group carries financial assets at FVPL using fair values. Fair value changes and
realized gains and losses are recognized as part of profit or loss.

The Group’s investments in trading securities are classified under this category
(see Note 7).

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the
intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS financial assets
or FVPL financial assets.

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment in value. Any interest earned on
loans and receivables shall be recognized as part of “Interest income” in profit or loss on
an accrual basis. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables and security deposits are included in
this category (see Notes 4, 5, 12, 21, 27 and 28).

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which are stated at face value. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

AFS Financial Assets

The Group’s investment in equity securities is classified as AFS financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein,
other than impairment losses, and foreign exchange gains and losses on AFS financial
assets monetary items, are recognised directly in equity. When an investment is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

The Group’s AFS equity instrument is carried at cost since its fair value cannot be
determined reliably in the absence of observable market data on the related assets
(see Note 9).

Other Financial Liabilities

This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not designated or classified as at
FVPL. After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any premium or discount and any directly attributable transaction costs that are
considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of the liability.

The Group’s accounts payable and accrued expenses, short-term loans and long-term
loans payable, due to related parties, trust receipts payable, other current liabilities and
noncurrent accrued rent are included in this category (see Notes 13, 14, 15, 21, 27
and 28).
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Debt Issue Costs

Debt issue costs are considered as directly attributable transaction costs upon initial
measurement of the related debt and are subsequently considered as an adjustment to the
amortized cost and effective yield of the related debt using the effective interest rate
method. When a loan is paid, the related unamortized debt issue costs at the date of
repayment are recognized in profit or loss.

Dereco ition of Financial Assets and Liabi ities

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

= the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; or

= the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to pay.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

ffsettin Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not
generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities
are presented at gross amounts in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Fair Value Measurements

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is
based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations without any deduction for
transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is

determined by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the
discounted cash flow method, comparison to similar instruments for which market
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observable price exist, options pricing models and other relevant valuation modes.

Merchandise Invento

Merchandise inventory is stated at the lower of cost and NRV. Cost is determined using
the moving average method. Costs comprise of purchase price, including duties, transport
and handling costs, and other incidental expenses incurred in bringing the merchandise
inventory to its present location and condition.

NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Pro and E ui ment

Property and equipment, excluding land and construction in progress, are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if any. Land is
carried at cost. Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is
stated at cost. This includes the costs of construction and other direct costs. Construction
in progress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are ready for use.

Initially, an item of property and equipment is measured at its cost, which comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditures are added to the carrying amount
of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance, will flow to the Group. All other subsequent
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss.

Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Number of Years
Building 15-30
Furniture and fixtures 3-20
Office and store equipment 2-15
Leasehold improvements 15 - 20 or term of the lease,

whichever is shorter

The useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed at each reporting
date to ensure that they are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from those assets.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is recognized in profit or
loss.

Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control on an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

An associate is an enterprise in which the investor has significant influence but not

control, generally accompanying a shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights.
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The Group’s investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures and
associates are initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss of the investments in joint
ventures and associates after the date of acquisition. The Group’s share in profit or loss
of the joint ventures and associates are recognized in the Group’s profit or loss.
Dividends received from the investments in joint ventures and associates reduce the
carrying amount of the investments.

Investment in a Joint O ration

A joint arrangement is classified as joint operations when the Group has rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. The Group
recognizes its share in the results of the joint arrangement aside from the compensation
from the use of its land and building. The Group has no capital commitments or
contingent liabilities in relation to its interests in joint arrangements.

Intan ible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible
assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditures are
recognized in profit or loss in the year in which the related expenditures are incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

The Group assessed the useful life of trademark and customer relationship to be
indefinite. Based on an analysis of all the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the asset is expected to generate cash inflows for the Group.

Trademark and customer relationship with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Computer software and licenses and leasehold rights are separately acquired by the
Group that has finite useful life is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits
embodied in the assets to which they relate. All other expenditures are recognized in
profit or loss when incurred.

The amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
life of the capitalized software from the date it is available for use and amortized over
five (5) years. Leasehold rights are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease
period of twenty (20) years. The estimated useful life and the amortization method of an
intangible asset with finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date.

Gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset with finite useful life is
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is disposed of or retired.

-17-



Goodwill

Goodwill that arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented with intangible assets.
For the measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see policy on basis of
consolidation. Goodwill is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment, and any impairment loss is allocated
to the carrying amount of the equity accounted investee as a whole.

Im airment of Assets

Financial Assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if
objective evidence indicates that one or more events had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Evidence of impairment for specific impairment purposes may include indications that
the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in principal or interest payments, or may enter into bankruptcy or other form
of financial reorganization intended to alleviate the financial condition of the borrower.
For collective impairment purposes, evidence of impairment may include observable data
on existing economic conditions or industry-wide developments indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of related assets.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount of loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Time value is generally not considered when the effect of discounting the cash flows is
not material. For collective impairment purposes, impairment loss is computed based on
their respective default and historical loss experience.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of an
allowance account. The impairment loss for the period shall be recognized in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the
carrying value of the assets does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

AFS Financial Assets

If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between the
cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss, is
transferred from equity to profit or loss. Reversals in respect of equity instruments
classified as AFS financial assets are not recognized in profit or loss, if the increase in
fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss.
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All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested annually
for impairment. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or
cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or CGUs. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment
testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of
CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Em lo ee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Retirement Benefits Cost

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed on a periodic basis by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in
a potential asset for the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan, if any. ‘

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.
The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit
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liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined liability (asset) during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to the defined benefit plan are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

E ui

Capital Stock

Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance
of capital stock are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Additional Paid-in Capital

The amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as “Additional paid-in
capital.” Additional paid-in capital also arises from additional capital contributions from
the shareholders.

Retained Earnings and Dividend Distribution
Retained earnings include current and prior years’ results, net of transactions with
shareholders and dividends declared, if any.

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognized as a liability, and deducted
from equity in the Group’s consolidated statements of financial position in the period in
which the dividends are approved and declared by the Group’s BOD.

Treasury Stock

Own equity instruments which are reacquired are carried at cost and are deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. When the shares of stock are retired,
the capital stock account is reduced by its par value and the excess of cost over par value
upon retirement is charged to additional paid-in capital to the extent of the specific or
average additional paid-in capital when the shares of stock were issued and to retained
earnings for the remaining balance.

Other Com rehensive Income

Other comprehensive income are items of income and expense (including reclassification
adjustments, if any) such as remeasurements of defined benefit plans that are not
recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by the related accounting standards.

Revenue and Ex ense Reco ition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable, net of sales discounts.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognized:

» Sale of Goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount
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can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue as
the sales are recognized. Accordingly, advances received prior to delivery of goods
are recorded as unearned revenues and are earned upon physical delivery and
acceptance by customer. Unearned revenues are classified as current liabilities.

»  Concession Income pertains to the fixed percentage income from sales of
concessionaire supplier’s goods sold inside the store. The income is recognized when
earned.

= Membership Income refers to fees from members wherein such fees permit only
membership, and all other services or products are paid for separately. The fee is
recognized as revenue when no uncertainty as to its collectability exists.

= Interest Income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest income is
presented net of final tax.

»  Rent Income from property and equipment is recognized as revenue on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an
integral part of the total rent income, over the term of the lease.

» Dividends are recognized when the Group’s right as a shareholder to receive the
payment is established.

= Other Income from display, demonstration or sampling, endcap or palette income,
merchandise support and miscellaneous income are recognized when earned.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes the purchase price of the products sold, as well as costs that are
directly attributable in bringing the merchandise to its intended condition and location.
These costs include the cost of storing and transporting the products
(i.e., freight costs or trucking costs, cross-dock delivery fees, and other direct costs).
Vendor returns and allowances are generally deducted from cost of sales.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses constitute costs of administering the business. These are recognized
as expenses as incurred.

Borrowin Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses when incurred, except to the extent
capitalized. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and
borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized.

Income Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

= where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

= with respect to taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits - Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) and unused tax
losses - Net Operating Loss Carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized, except:

= where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

= with respect to deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
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taxation authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

= receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included
as part of “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” or “Accounts payable and accrued
expenses” in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Leases

Group as Lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Group as Lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Rent income from operating
leases is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rent
income.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

Forei Currenc Transactions and Translation

Transactions in currencies other than Philippine peso are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the reporting date. Assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Gains and losses arising from foreign currency
transactions are recognized in profit or loss.

Se ment Re ortin

An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating
to transactions with other components of the same entity), whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.

The Group determines and presents operating segments based on the information that is
internally provided to the Chairman and the President, collectively as the Group’s chief
operating decision maker. The Group assessed that its retailing business as a whole
represents a single segment.
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Provisions and Contin encies

A provision is recognized when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made on the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are revisited at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money, and, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Basic and Diluted Earnin s Per Share EPS

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period, after retroactive adjustment for stock
dividend declared in the current period, if any. Diluted EPS is also computed in the same
manner as the aforementioned, except that, the net income and the number of common
shares outstanding is adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive debt or equity
instruments.

Events After the Re ortin Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at
the reporting date (adjusting events) are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

September December

Note 2016 2015

Cash on hand P568,761,227 P735,964,181
Cash in banks 27,28 500,903,609 1,577,093,521
Mone market lacements 27, 28 111,085 798 3,933 435,315

28 P1,180,750,634 P6,246,493,017

Cash in banks earns annual interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Money market
placements are highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and are
subjected to insignificant risk of changes in value. These investments have maturity dates
of an average of 30 days with an annual interest rates ranging from 0.50% to 2.08% in
2016 and from 1.60% to 2.08% in 2015. Interest income earned from cash in banks and
money market placements amounted to P10.16 million and P16.22 million in September
2016 and 2015, respectively.
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5. Receivables

This account consists of:

September December

Note 2016 2015

Trade receivables: a 21 P916,417,669 P1,471,239,823
Non-trade receivables b, 21 1,821,873,935 1,219,318,400

2,738,291,604 2,690,558,223
Less allowance for impairment losses
on trade receivables from third
arties 7,462,327 7,462,327

27,28 P2,730,829,277  P2,683,095.896

a. Majority of trade receivables pertain to credit card transactions which are due within
30 days or its normal credit period. The Group partners only with reputable credit
card companies affiliated with major banks. Management believes that except for the
accounts provided with allowance for impairment losses amounting to P7.46 million
as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, all other receivables are
collectible and therefore, no additional allowance is necessary.

b. Non-trade receivables represent the amounts due from tenants in relation to rentals of
store spaces. This account also includes due from suppliers with respect to “demo” or
“sampling” conducted by suppliers’ representatives and strategic locations granted to
suppliers with regard to the display of their products in the selling area of the stores.
It also includes advances to employees which are collected by the Group through
salary deduction.

6. Merchandise Inventory
This account consists of groceries and other consumer products (canned goods,
housewares, toiletries, dry goods, food products, etc.) held for sale in the ordinary course
of business on wholesale and retail bases.

Inventory cost as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 is lower than NRV.

The Group’s merchandise inventory as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015
amounted to P16,472.08 million and P12,982.83 million, respectively.

Inventory charged to the cost of sales amounted to P65,833.57 million and P56,090.91
million in September 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 16).

7. Investments in Trading Securities
The investments in trading securities represent the Parent Company’s investments in

marketable securities that are traded in the PSE. The fair values of these listed shares are
based on their closing market prices as at the reporting dates.
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The movements and balances of these investments in trading securities are as follows:

September December
Note 2016 2015
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year P15,355,998 P14,518,906
Additions 837,092
15,355,998 15,355,998
Valuation Adjustments
Balance at beginning of the year 19,076,593 22,929,563
Unrealized valuation gain (loss) on
financial assets at FVPL for the ear 20 2,851,180 (3,852,970

21,927,773 19,076,593
28 P37,283,771 P34,432,591

8. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

September December

2016 2015

Prepaid expenses P584,270,458 P457,252,639

Input value added tax (VAT) 450,219,474 569,408,292

Deferred input VAT 46,072,942 40,751,176
Creditable withholdin tax 42,247,959

P1,122,810,833 P1,067,412,107

Input VAT represents accumulated input taxes from purchases of goods and services for
business operation and purchases of materials and services for the building and leasehold
construction which can be applied against future output VAT.

The details of prepaid expenses are as follows:

September December

Note 2016 2015

Rent 17 P374,492,287 P318,620,368
Taxes and licenses 142,033,636 64,648,390
Insurance 51,266,289 47,019,465
Repairs and maintenance 2,436,750 5,818,365
Advances to contractors - 16,160,000
Others 14,041,496 4,986,051
P584.270,458 P457.252.639

Prepaid taxes and licenses pertain to payments made to government for registration fees

and other taxes.

Prepaid insurance refers to payments made in advance in return for insurance services
covering the Group’s merchandise inventory, property and equipment and others.
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Deferred input VAT represents accumulated input taxes for purchases of capital assets
more than P1.00 million and unbilled services for the building and leasehold construction
which can be applied against future output VAT.

9. Investments; Acquisitions of Subsidiaries

Investments

The details of investments are as follows:

September December

Note 2016 2015

Investments in joint ventures a P432,398,357 P432,398,357
Investment in associate b, 28 427,813,089 427,813,089
AFS financial assets c, 28 7,879,160 7,879,160

P868,090,606 P868,090,606

a. Investments in Joint Ventures

PG Lawson Company, Inc.

On June 12, 2014, the Parent Company entered into a joint venture agreement with
Lawson Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd. and Lawson, Inc. (Lawson), both engaged in
the operation of convenience stores in Japan and other Asian countries, to establish
PG Lawson Company, Inc. (PLCI), a joint venture company that will operate
convenience stores in the Philippines.

The Parent Company subscribed a total of 3,500,000 common shares at P100.00 par
value for a total investment of P350.00 million representing a 70% interest while
Lawson subscribed to a total of 1,500,000 common shares at P100.00 par value for a
total investment of P150.00 million or 30% interest in the joint venture. PLCI was
incorporated in the Philippines on June 2, 2014.

The movement in carrying amount of investment with PLCI follows:

September December
2016 2015
Balance at beginning of the year P318,276,913 P350,000,000
Additions -
Share in net loss 31 723,087)

318,276,913 P318,276.913

AyaGold Retailers, Inc.

On July 8, 2013, the Group through Entenso entered into a joint venture agreement
with Varejo Corp., an entity engaged in operations of small convenience stores, to
incorporate a new company, AyaGold Retailers, Inc. (AyaGold), for the investment
in and operation of mid-market supermarkets and to pursue other investment
opportunities in the Philippine retail sector as both parties may agree. AyaGold was
incorporated in the Philippines on July 8, 2013 and started operation on July 31, 2015
with the opening of its first supermarket “Merkado” located at U.P. Town Center.

Both parties subscribed to 6,000,000 common shares and 54,000,000 redeemable

preferred shares each with a par value of P1.00 for a total investment of
P60.00 million representing 50% interest each to the joint venture.
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The redeemable preferred shares shall have the following features:
(a) Voting rights;

(b) Participating in dividends declaration for common shares and may be entitled to
such dividends as may be determined and approved by the Board of Directors;

(c) Entitled to receive out of the assets of the joint venture available for distribution
to the parties, before any distribution of assets is made to holders of common
shares, distributions in the amount of the issue value per outstanding redeemable
preferred share, plus declared and unpaid dividends to the date of distribution;
and

(d) Redeemable at the option of the joint venture.

The carrying amount of its investment and its share in the losses of AyaGold follow:

September December

2016 2015

Balance at beginning of the year P114,121,444 P42,726,149
Additions 87,500,000
Share in net loss 16,104,705

P114,121,444 P114,121,444

b. Investment in Associate

C.

On December 4, 2013, the Group through Entenso acquired equity interest in San
Roque Supermarkets (SRS) for a total cost of P371,896,077. SRS is a local entity
currently engaged in the business of trading goods on a wholesale and retail basis.

On October 31, 2014, the Group through Entenso subscribed and paid additional one
hundred ninety thousand eight (190,008) common shares from the unissued capital
stock of the SRS for total cost of P19,000,800.

The carrying amount of its investment and its share in the net income of SRS follow:

Se tember 2016 December 2015
Carrying amount

Balance at beginning of the year P427,813,089 P390,896,877
Additions -
Share in net income 36,916,212

P427,813,089 P427,813,089

AFS Financial Assets

AFS financial assets also include Tower Club shares amounting to P617,500 and
Meralco preferred shares amounting to P7,261,660 which is acquired in connection
with the installation of telephone lines and electrical systems for the different stores
and offices of the Parent Company.
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The AFS Financial assets pertaining to Tower Club are carried at cost since the fair
value cannot be determined reliably in the absence of an observable market data on
these related assets.

Ac uisitions of Subsidiaries
The following are the developments relating to the Parent Company’s investments in
subsidiaries in 2016 and 2015:

Entenso Equities Incorporated (Entenso)

On July 3, 2013, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the acquisition of Entenso’s
entire outstanding capital stock. On the same day, the BOD of Entenso approved the
increase in Entenso’s authorized capital stock from P5.00 million divided into
50,000 shares at P100 par value to P1.00 billion divided into 10,000,000 shares at
P100 par value.

In 2015, the Parent Company made an additional investment to Entenso amounting to
P1.7 billion. Entenso is in the process of filing application for an increase in its
authorized capital stock with the SEC.

Company E Corporation

On January 14, 2013, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the acquisition of Company
E Corporation (the company behind the Eunilaine Foodmart and Grocer E Supermart
chains). The Parent Company acquired 290,000 common shares of Company E
representing its total outstanding shares at P1,137.93 per share through cash. Company E
has seven supermarkets within Metro Manila, six in Rizal province and two in the
province of Cavite which will operate the same store as the Parent Company. As at
December 31, 2014, there are fourteen stores in operation, one store in Rizal was closed
in the same year.

On March 25, 2014, the BOD approved the merger of the Parent Company with
Company E Corporation. It was then ratified by at least two-thirds (2/3) votes of the
stockholders on May 13, 2014 during the annual stockholders’ meeting with its salient
features discussed in Note 1. In April 2015, upon approval by the SEC of the merger, the
existence of Company E ceased and all its assets and liabilities were merged with the
Parent Company.

Kareila Management Corporation

On December 21, 2012, the BOD of Kareila approved the declaration of stock dividends
amounting to P329.69 million from its unrestricted retained earnings as at
December 31, 2012. The date of record and date of payment are April 15, 2013 and
April 30, 2013, respectively.

On November 28, 2013, the BOD of Kareila resolved to increase its authorized capital
stock from P500 million divided into 5 million shares, with par value of P100 per share
to P3,000 million pesos divided into 30 million shares with a par value of P100 per share.
Out of the increase in the authorized capital stock of P2,500 million, 25% of which or
P625 million had been actually subscribed by the Parent company out of the stock
dividend declared by Kareila. On the same date, the Kareila amended its articles of
incorporation. Subsequently, on December 13, 2013, SEC approved the Kareila’s
application of its increase in authorized capital stock.
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The BOD of Kareila approved the declaration of dividends from its unrestricted retained
earnings as follow:

December 31, 2015
Date of Dividend Shareholders of
T e of Dividend Declaration Record as of Amount
Cash December 18,2015  December 18, 2015 P475,000,000
December 31, 2014
Date of Dividend Shareholders of
T e of Dividend Declaration Record as of Amount
Cash December 18, 2014 December 18, 2014 P475,000,000
Stock December 18, 2014 December 18, 2014 1,000,000,000

P1.475,000.000

Gant Group of Companies Incorporated (Gant)

On May 30, 2012, the Parent Company acquired 519,111 shares or 100% of the
outstanding capital stock of Gant, owner and operator of Parco Supermarket. The
investee is engaged in the business of trading consumer products. Acquisition cost
amounted to P743.84 million. The Parent Company incurred acquisition-related cost of
P0.19 million.

On February 26, 2013, the SEC approved the application for the merger of the Parent
Company with PJSI and Gant. Upon approval by the SEC of the merger, the existence of
Gant ceased and all its assets and liabilities were merged with the Parent Company.

Puregold Junior Supermarket, Inc. (PJSI)

The Parent Company owns 100% equity interest in PJSI, an entity engaged in the
business of trading goods such as consumer products (canned goods, housewares,
toiletries, dry goods, food products, etc.) on a wholesale and retail basis. Acquisition cost
amounted to P50.00 million. On April 30, 2012, the Parent Company paid
P550.00 million to PJSI, a subsidiary, as deposit for future stock subscription for
5,500,000 common shares. Upon approval by the SEC of the merger, the existence of
PJSI ceased and all its assets and liabilities were merged with the Parent Company.

PPCI Subic Inc.

The Parent Company invested P3.13 million in PPCI Subic Inc., an entity incorporated
on May 31, 2012. The investment represents 100% of the outstanding capital stock of the
investee. PPCI Subic Inc. will operate as a Puregold store within the area of the Subic
Bay Economic Zone, Zambales. It started commercial operations on September 20, 2012.
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Transfer-in pertains to property and equipment of acquired and merged entities upon its
acquisition as mentioned in Note 1.

The adjustments resulted from the evaluation made by the Parent Company to its
subsidiaries’ property and equipment. The Group’s assets were aligned with Parent
Company’s asset recognition policy. Assets were either recorded into its proper
classification or expensed if it did not meet the criteria of capitalization.

No impairment loss was recognized in 2016 and 2015.

11. Intangibles and Goodwill
This account consists of:

September December
Note 2016 2015

Goodwill a P14,718,129,154 P14,684,084,973
Trademark b 3,709,660,547 3,709,660,547
Customer relationship b 889,452,981 889,452 981
Computer software and licenses - net c 172,571,389 171,737,656
Leasehold ri hts ¢ 63,358,983 66,184,796

P19,553,173,054  P19,521,120,953

a. Goodwill
The goodwill represents the excess of the total acquisition cost over the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition of the following

Subsidiaries.

2012 Note Cost
PJSI al P11,370,121
Kareila a2 12,079,473,835
Gant al 742,340,804
12,833,184,760

2013
Merger of PJSI and Gant to Parent Company al a4 4,142
Com an E al 358,152,015
358,156,157

2015
DCI and FLSTCI a6 685,904,317
Bud etlane Su ermarkets a7 840,883,920
1,526,788,237
P14,718,129,154

-32-



Details are as follows:

a.l. Acquisition of PJSI

Acquisition cost* P50,003,542
Fair value of net assets June 30, 2010) 38,629,279
Goodwill P11,374,263

*The amount disclosed was after the additional shares issued to reflect the effects of merger of PJSI and the
Parent Company.

a.2. Acquisition of Kareila

The following summarizes the consideration transferred and the recognized
amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Consideration transferred P16,477,734,375

Assets

Current assets 1,651,017,012

Property and equipment net 928,294,217

Other noncurrent assets 50,500,198

Liabilities

Current liabilities (1,431,714,792)
Noncurrent liabilities (4,389,307)
Deferred tax liabilit (1,379,734,058)
Total fair value of net tangible liabilities (186,026,730)
S&R trade name 3,709,660,547

Customer relationshi 889,452,981

Fair value of identifiable intangible assets 4,599,113,528

Total fair value of net assets* 4,413,086,798

Ad’ustment for PAS 19 ado tion 14,826,258

Total adjusted fair value net asset 4,398,260,540

Goodwill P12,079,473,835

*The amount disclosed is before the restatement of Kareila’s balance due to prior period adjustment as a result
of the adoption of PAS 19, Employee Benefits.

The purchase price of P4,599.11 million represents the fair value of S&R trade
name and customer relationship determined after considering various factors and
performing valuation methodologies including the independent valuation study
and analysis prepared by an independent valuation specialist (see Note 11.b).

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of P3.83 million. This cost has been

included as part of operating expenses in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in 2012.
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a.3.

Acquisition of Gant

The following summarizes the consideration transferred, and the recognized
amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the Gant group at the
acquisition date:

Consideration transferred P743,840,962
Fair value of net assets 1,500,158
Goodwill P742,340,804

There was no identifiable intangible asset as at acquisition and valuation dates.
The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the acquired assets and
liabilities assumed is attributable to goodwill amounting to P742.34 million.

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of P0.19 million. This cost has been
included as part of operating expenses in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in 2012,

a.4. Merger of PJSI and Gant

a.5.

a.b.

As mentioned in Note 9, on February 26, 2013, the SEC approved the application
for merger of the Parent Company, PJSI and Gant. As a consideration for the said
merger, the Parent Company paid the owner of PJSI amounting to P4,142.

Acquisition of Company E
The following summarizes the consideration transferred, and the recognized

amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on Company E at the
acquisition date:

Acquisition cost P404,065,000
Fair value of net assets 45,912,985
Goodwill P358,152,015

There was no identifiable intangible asset as at acquisition and valuation dates.
The excess of the purchase price over the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed is attributable to goodwill amounting to P358.15 million.

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of P0.19 million. This cost has been
included as part of operating expenses in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in 2013.

Acquisition of Daily Commodities Inc. (DCI) and First Lane Super Traders Co.,
Inc. (FLST)
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On February 3, 2015, the Group through Entenso acquired 100% interest in DCI
and FLST for a total cost of P768.49 million. DCI and FLST is a local entity
currently engaged in the business of trading goods on a wholesale and retail
basis.

The following summarizes the consideration transferred, and the recognized
amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on DCI and FLST at the
acquisition date:

Acquisition cost P768,485,000
Fair value of net assets 82,580,683
Goodwill P685,904.317

There was no identifiable intangible asset as at acquisition and valuation dates.
The excess of the purchase price over the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed is attributable to goodwill amounting to P690.90 million.

a.7. Acquisition of Bargain City Inc. (BCI), Multi-Merchantrade Inc. (MMI) and
Superplus Corporation (SC) (collectively as “Budgetlane Supermarkets™)

On August 6, 2015, the Group through Goldtempo Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Entenso, acquired substantially all of the assets of BCI, MMI and
SC. Goldtempo took over the operations of 8 supermarkets located mainly in
Metro Manila and Luzon.

The following summarizes the consideration transferred, and the recognized
amounts of assets acquired assumed on BCI, MMI and SC at the acquisition date:

Acquisition cost P1,496,500,821
Fair value of net assets 655,616,901
Goodwill P840,883,920

There was no identifiable intangible asset as at acquisition and valuation dates.
The excess of the purchase price over the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed is attributable to goodwill amounting to P838.58 million.

The Group used provisionary fair values of the identifiable net assets in
calculating the goodwill of DCI, FLST, BCI, MMI and SC as at the acquisition
date. Upon finalization of the purchase price allocation exercise, the Group will
restate the amounts of the net assets acquired and goodwill, in accordance with
PFRS 3.
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b. Trademark and Customer Relationshi

The fair value of the trademark and customer relationship was determined after
giving due consideration to various factors and valuation methodologies including
the independent valuation study and analysis prepared by an independent valuation
specialist. The Parent Company, after considering the said valuation methodologies,
viewed the royalty relief (based on commercial rates) and multi-period excess
earnings methodologies to be generally more relevant, compared to other
methodologies that may be used to value the Parent Company’s trademarks and
customer relationships, on the basis that such methodologies require fewer
assumptions and less reliance on subjective reasoning since key assumptions come
from primary sources based on the Parent Company’s filings and projections, actual
industry precedents and industry common practice.

Im airment of Goodwill Trademark and Customer Relationshi

The recoverable amount of goodwill, trademark and customer relationship has been
determined based on value in use (VIU), using cash flow projections covering a
five-year period. It is based on a long range plans approved by management. The
VIU is based on a 2% terminal growth rate and discount rate of 10%. The terminal
growth rate used is consistent with the long-term average growth rate for the Group’s
industry. The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of capital (WACC)
by taking into consideration the debt equity capital structure and cost of debt of
comparable companies and cost of equity based on appropriate market risk premium.
The financial projection used in the VIU is highly dependent on the gross sales and
gross profit margin. For purposes of growth rate sensitivity, a growth rate scenario of
2% and 3% is applied on the discounted cash flow analysis. Based on the sensitivity
analysis, any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of goodwill, trademark and customer relationship to exceed its
recoverable amount.

Management assessed that there is no impairment in the value of goodwill, trademark
and customer relationship as at September 30, 2016 and December 2015.

¢. Leasehold Ri hts and Com uter So are and Licenses

On January 25, 2013, the Parent Company executed a memorandum of agreement
with various lessors, namely, BHF Family Plaza, Inc. (BHF), Lim Y-U Group, Inc.,
and R&A Malvar Trading Company, Inc. which paved the way for the establishment
of five (5) Puregold stores previously owned and operated by these lessors. Under the
agreement, the lessors agreed to sell to the Parent Company all merchandise
inventories, equipment, furniture and fixtures as well as granting of rights to lease the
buildings owned by each lessor for a period of twenty (20) years upon compliance of
the conditions set forth in the memorandum of agreement. As a result of the
transaction, the Parent Company recognized leasehold rights representing the excess
of cost paid over the fair value of all assets acquired which will be amortized on a
straight-line basis over the lease period.
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The movements and balances of leasehold rights and computer software and licenses

consists of:

Computer
Software and Leasehold
Licenses Ri hts Total
Cost
Balance, January 1,2015 P232,841,987 P75,355,005 P308,196,992
Transfer in 9,387,434 9,387,434
Additions 79,290,672 79,290,672
Ad’ustments 51,867,660 51,867,660
Balance, December 31, 2015 269,652,433 75,355,005 345,007,438
Additions 22,199,698 22,199,698
Ad’ustments (2,295,886 2,295,886
Balance, September 30, 2016 289,556,245 75,355,005 364,911,250
Accumulated Amortization
Balance, January 1, 2015 76,330,197 5,402,458 81,732,655
Amortization 21,584,580 3,767,751 25,352,331
Balance, December 31, 2015 97,914,777 9,170,209 107,084,986
Amortization 19,070,079 2,825,813 21,895,892
Balance, September 30, 2016 116,984,856 11,996,022 128,980,878
Carrying Amount
December 31, 2015 P171,737,656 P66,184,796 P237,922,452
September 30, 2016 P172,571,389 63,358,983 P235,930,372
12. Other Noncurrent Assets
This account consists of:
September December
Note 2016 2015
Security deposits 17, 27,28 P1,376,051,007 P1,279,453,908
Prepaid rent 17 92,543,043 94,950,257
Accrued rent income 17,23 35,332 670 31,918,814
P1,503,926,720 P1,406,322,979

Accrued rent income pertains to the excess of rent income over billing to tenants in
accordance with PAS 17, Leases.

-37-



13. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

September December
Note 2016 2015
Trade 21,27, 28 P3,190,191,236  P6,061,498,485
Non-trade 21,27, 28 1,931,285,392 1,662,591,104
Dividends payable 24, 27, 28 829,614,422
Withholding taxes payable 135,786,037 154,284,063
Accrued expenses: 27,28
Manpower agency services 497,882,612 434,949,042
Utilities 89,887,805 115,318,825
Professional fees 44,643,913 50,152,059
Rent 17,728,193 17,797,247
Fixed asset acquisition 10 3,399,214 4,886,038
Interest 2,131,224 5,165,690
Inventory - 396,500,821
Others 130,042,159 44,937,424
P6,042,977,785  P9,777,695,220

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods from suppliers is 30 days.

No interest is charged on trade payables.

The Group has financial risk management

policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time frame

(see Note 27).

Non-trade payables consist of claims arising from billed expenditures in relation to
operations other than purchases of goods, fixed asset acquisitions and structures under

construction.

Fixed asset acquisition pertains to amounts payable to Parent Company’s contractor of
store establishments. The Group is bound by the terms of the contract and payables are

due upon completion of certain work to be done.

14. Loans Payable
The Group has the following outstanding loans payable:

a. Short-term Loans Pa able

The Group entered into the following loan facilities to be used as additional working

capital:
September
Note 2016
Short-term note based on 2.38% P2,597,500,000
Short-term note based on 2.50% 890,000,000
Short-term note based on 2.00% 200,000,000

27,28 P3,687,500,000

December

2015
P2,247,500,000
890,000,000

P3,137,500,000

Principal amounts will be due on lump sum on their maturity dates. Extension
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and/or renewal of the notes are granted by the financial institution to the Parent
Company. The proceeds of these loans will be used primarily to augment general
working capital requirements.

b. Lon -term Loans Pa able

b.1. The outstanding loans are as follows:

September December
Note 2016 2015

Unsecured Peso Denominated
Fixed rate note based on 3.5% I P1,996,578,877 P1,995,062,298
Fixed rate note based on 3.25% ii 120,000,000 570,000,000
Fixed rate note based on 3.5% iii 400,000,000 400,000,000
27,28 2,516,578,877  2,965,062,298
Less current ortion 120,000,000 570,000,000

P2,396,578,877 P2,395,062,298

i.  On June 13, 2013, the Parent Company issued a P2 billion promissory note.
Interest is computed as 3.50% per annum of the principal amount. The debt
has a term of 1,803 days and will be paid on a lump sum on May 21, 2018.

ii. On April 14, 2013, the Parent Company signed and executed a two (2) year
promissory note amounting to P963.70 million. The debt bears a 3.25%
interest rate per annum and shall be repaid in a single payment on maturity.
As at September 30, 2016, a total of P843.70 million of the loan amount was
already paid. The balance was renewed at 2.38% interest rate per annum and
payable on January 4, 2017.

The movements in debt issue costs are as follows:

September December

2016 2015

Balance at beginning of the year P4,937,702 P7,665,410
Amortizations 1,516,578 2,727,708
Balance at end of year P3.421,124 P4,937,702

iii. On July 23, 2013, Kareila signed and executed a P500.00 million unsecured
loan agreement with a local bank. The loan shall be repaid in lump sum after
five (5) years. Its related interest is at 3.50% per annum. As at
September 30, 2016, P100.00 million of the loan amount was already paid.
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Re  ment Schedule
The annual maturities of long-term loans are as follows:

September December

Year 2016 2015
2016 P120,000,000 P570,000,000
2018 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
P2,120,000,000 P2,570,000,000

There are no debt covenants for above unsecured loans entered into by the Group.

Interest expense from these loans amounting to P57.69 million and P92.22 millior
were capitalized in September 2016 and December 2015 and recognized in building
and leasehold improvements under property and equipment accounts (see Note 10).
Remaining interest expense that was charged to profit and loss amounted to P69.36
million and P70.30 million in September 2016 and December 2015, respectively.

15. Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

September December

Note 2016 2015

Deposits 17,27,28 P138,506,027 P137,849,852
Loyalty and rewards 87,743,325 15,100,407
Unredeemed gift certificates 73,298,979 89,430,184
Promotion fund 22,329,084 35,578,785
VAT payable 22,113,428 46,178,424
Others 27, 28 1,746,552 2,988,367

P345,737,395  P327,126,019

Deposits represent amounts paid by the store tenants for the lease of store spaces which
are refundable upon termination of the lease.

Unredeemed gift certificates represent issued yet unused gift certificates. These will be
closed to sales account upon redemption and are due and demandable.

Promotion fund is promotional discount granted for the Group’s promotion and
advertising activities in partnership with suppliers.

Loyalty and rewards are provided for the point’s redemption of ‘‘Tindahan ni Aling
Puring” members. Points are earned upon purchase of participating items and may be
used as payments of their purchases which make it due and demandable.

Others include cashier’s bond withheld from each cashier to compensate for any possible
cash shortages in the store.
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16. Cost of Sales

This account for the periods ended September 30 consists of:

Note 2016 2015
Beginning inventory P12,982,832,312 P11,166,772,652
Add: Purchases 69,322,817,829 57,778,153,990
Total goods available for sale 82,305,650,141 68,944,926,642
Less endin invento 16,472,082,170 12,854,017,734

P65,833,567,971 P56,090,908.908

17. Lease Agreements

As Lessee

The Group leases warehouses, parking spaces and certain lands and buildings where
some of its stores are situated or constructed. The terms of the lease are for the periods
ranging from ten to forty (10-40) years, renewable for the same period under the same
terms and conditions. The rent shall escalate by an average of 1% to 7%. Rental
payments are fixed amounts which are calculated either fixed monthly rent or is
calculated in reference to a fixed sum per square meter of area leased based on the
contracts.

The Group is required to pay advance rental payments and security deposits on the above
leases which are either fixed monthly rent or are calculated in reference to a fixed sum
per square meter of area leased. These are shown under “Prepaid expenses and other
current assets” and “Other noncurrent assets” accounts, respectively, in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Notes 8 and 12).

The scheduled maturities of non-cancellable minimum future rental payments are as

follows:
September December
2016 2015
Due within one year P2,039,161,613 P1,875,675,972
Due more than one year but not more
than five years 8,693,165,722 7,989,235,677
Due more than five ears 33288203 009 32,171,881,713
P44,020,530,344 P42,036,793,362
As Lessor

The Group subleases portion of its store space to various lessees for an average lease
term of one to ten (1-10) years. The lease contracts may be renewed upon mutual
agreement by the parties. Rental payments are computed either based on monthly sales or
a certain fixed amount, whichever is higher. Upon inception of the lease agreement,
tenants are required to pay certain amounts of deposits. Tenants likewise pay a fixed
monthly rent which is shown under “Other current liabilities” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 15).
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The scheduled maturities of non-cancellable minimum future rental collections are as

follows:
Se tember 2016  December 2015
Due within one year P200,043,239 P221,218,520
Due more than one year but not more
than five years 267,292,113 296,252,472
Due more than five ears 158,075 564 167,316,410

P625,410,916 P684,787,402

18. Other Operating Income

This account for the periods ended September 30 consists of:

Note 2016 2015
Concession income P1,053,927,086 P995,034,785
Display allowance 451,830,730 380,984,352
Rent income 17 282,353,541 281,078,448
Membership income 271,369,123 257,642,045
Listing fee 62,434,498 20,597,593
Merchandising support 58,524,243 55,726,923
Miscellaneous 91,153,913 69,765,390

P2,271,593,134 P2,060,829,536

Concession income pertains to the fixed percentage income from sales of concessionaire
suppliers’ goods sold inside the store.

Display allowance refers to the income received from the suppliers for the additional
space for display of the items in the selling area such as end cap modules and mass
display.

Rent income relates to the income earned for the store spaces occupied by the tenants.
Merchandising support pertains to income generated from promotional activities.

Membership income pertains to fees from members of Kareila, Company E and Subic
wherein such fees permit only membership, and all other services or products are paid for
separately.

Listing fee pertains to the amount collected from the supplier for enrolling their products
in the classified business line.

Miscellaneous account consists of amounts collected from the customers for delivering
their purchases, cashiers’ overages, sale of used packaging materials and others. This also
includes demo/sampling income which pertains to the fee paid by the suppliers for the
privilege granted by Kareila in allowing a representative of the supplier to conduct a
demo or give away samples of their products inside the selling area of the stores.
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19. Operating Expenses

This account for the periods ended September 30 consists of:

Note 2016
Rent 17 P1,844,137,489
Manpower agency services 1,539,360,057
Communication, light and water 1,258,573,067
Salaries and wages 1,180,713,562
Depreciation and amortization 10, 11 1,041,680,399
Security services 625,181,298
Taxes and licenses 395,204,443
Store and office supplies 353,527,450

2015

P1,685,337,846
1,285,389,221
1,204,092,565
1,001,983,259

943,081,579
513,364,204
330,238,021
304,739,409
324,628,323
241,269,693
227,824,245

89,935,074
105,988,419

98,205,006

73,330,808
53,661,385
36,692,765
48,776,920
30,424,844
26,230,195
15,929,116
85,418,071

P9,912,497,916 P8,726,540,968

Concession expense 2] 319,828,251
Janitorial and messengerial services 299,493,354
Repairs and maintenance 279,036,778
Adpvertising and marketing 113,233,210
Other selling expenses 111,338,877
Insurance 110,204,207
SSS/Medicare and HDMF

contributions 85,537,972
Input VAT allocable to exempt sales 75,651,395
Transportation 45,876,798
Representation and entertainment 35,204,239
Fuel and oil 32,890,211
Royalty 21 29,940,530
Professional fee 19,496,771
Miscellaneous 116,387,558

20. Others

This account for the periods ended September 30 consists of:

Note 2016
Bank charges (P18,397,894)
Unrealized valuation gain (loss) on
trading securities 2,851,180
Dividend income 849,991
Foreign exchange loss (188,189)

Loss on disposal of property and
equipment 10
E ui innetearnin s of associate

(P14,884,912)
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(P12,448,554)

(3,913,185)
892,591
(44,613)

(423,262)
20,050,582

P4,113,561



IVVI

PADMLO ]
S|qepuewoap 80€°€CT - - [4E% 154 91174
palnoasufy pue an 9IPP'6re 09T’y - 901°vZ6°1 9107 soueURUTEW pUe siieday
JIqepueliop Sps6L - - 018°5E6°L 91174
paindasuf) pue anQ 0b9°S€9 - - 990°01°21 o 9107  PaA1ed2a1 sysodap A1noag
wusuwreduw ou JIqepuelisp - - L1Z°0T8°T - - €102
‘paIndasup) pue anQg - - - - 9102 awodul YO
1usuuieduw ou Jlqepueliap - - - TSTLOV'61  €S6°91F°ES €10Z
‘paindasun pue an(j - - - - 869°982's 6FI°LLS'LE 9102 SSIpuBydISW JO IS
Slqepuewiap - - 9LSTYE V6T - - 1SL°6L8°C8Y €10Z
palnoasup) pug angg - - 006 1PP'STI - 1SS'99L81L 9102 osipueoIatl Jo aseydung
S|qepuetusp - - - - £2€°879°VCE 9 (114
palnoasuf) pue anQg - - - - I1ST'8T8‘61€ 9102 asuadxa uorssaouo))
S|qepuelap - 8S0°08€ V1 0$$919°81¥ €10Z
palndasuf) pue an(g - SSSISY 1€ pIET68 TLY 9102 asuadxa jusy
»S3dRd pajeRY 12Y30
s|qepuetisp gseeoleey €10Z
paindasup) pue anQg d - d d 9102 spuspiai(
SITENLP |
SuonNIpuo)) swaay sanaed €1 990N 238) (€] AON 298) (G 210N 938) (G 9ION 99S)  PpoLRg 20N dBIX Jaed pagPRy
paeYy Jlqeded Jqeded AqBAIINY 3qeARIY  Yjuow
03 anQq apea] uoN apeay ape.a] uoN apealL -3UIN Y3 10§
suondesuBaA]
JO junowy

sddue[eg sulpueIsinQ

“MO[[0J S10T “[ £ 19quIdde( pUE 9107
‘0¢ 1oqudldag e SB SI0UR[Rq JUNOOOR pUB SUOIOBSURI) 9sY |, 'sailed paje[al si Yum suonoesuel) sey dnoln dy) ‘SSaUISNQ JO ISINOO [BULIOU 3] U]

suonoesue.l ], A)1eJ pavePRy ‘1z



painoasup)

paIndasun

pandasun)

painodasun)

pandasun)

paIndasun

painaasup)
suonIpuo)

s|qepuewap
pue anQg
s|qepuewap
pue anQg

s|qepuewap
pue anQg
S]qepuewiap
pue ang
s|qepuewap
pue ang
s|qepuewap
pue anQg

s[qepuewap
pue anQg

SULIdY,

Oy
-+

c1t69L°6td OLLFCEC9td  9LCTHETO L1T0CS7ed
898'0r6°6Td S68°TIL'SPd 006" 1H4'STId 09784
TIP69L6T

89801667

- 000009 - -

- - - 000°08

- S0E°€60°T - -

- 901°088°1 - -

- 86£°TEES - -

- LTS126 - -

L9111

- v0S‘8I

- 0v9°1€9°91 - -

-d LI8'ST8'6d - d - d
sanIed €1 9JON 39S) €] 9ION 338 G 910N 338)
paejoy Jquedieg Jqeieg IqBAIDIY
o} an(y IpeI] UON pua] ape.l] uoN

cccLoreld
869°98T'sd

- d
(¢ 910N 298)
IqBAIINY
peI]

s3ouejeg JuipueIsng

1041100 uowwos 43pun saiua o1 utviad saaod paivyal 1ayi0,

cloc [e10]
9102 leyo L,
- s10T
9107  sHJaUdq JudWAO[dU-ISOJ
vSEBLS SS s10T
9L8'STIOL 9102 SIJ3UIq ULIAI-LI0YS
ov199€°91 10T
Or1'99£°91 9107 asuadxa jusy
S61°0£T°9T s10T
0£S°0p6°6T 4 910z asuadxa Ayedoy
[Puuosidg
JudWIBBUBA] A3y
- s10T
00008 9107 19SSE X1
T6L'ESHE §10T
TIC'9SS‘L 9107 sonddng
986°CE1°Tl s10T
T65°660°P1 9107 99 Juswaeuey
L9L°90T s10T
88EVLE 9107 SUOHBOIUNWWO))
£EEOVI6ET §10T
LTS'69L'SETd 9102 asuadxa saninn
I83X Y} U0 0N  ABIX 8J PAIBRYU
suonoesura ],
Jo junowmry



The Group, in the normal course of business, has transactions with its related parties as
follows:

a.

Lease of Building

The Group leases the building from its related parties where some stores are located.
The Group pays its related parties a minimum fixed amount or is calculated in
reference to a fixed sum per square meter of area leased. The terms of the lease are
for the periods ranging from ten to thirty-five (10 -35) years, renewable for the same
period under the same terms and conditions. The rent shall escalate by the range from
1% to 7%. Rental payments are fixed amounts based on the contracts.

Consignment and Concession

On September 27, 2006, PSMT Philippine, Inc. (PriceSmart), referred to as the
“Consignee,” an entity under common control, entered into a consignment and
concession contract with Kareila, referred to as the “Consignor.” The Consignee is
the owner and operator of four (4) Warehouse, (1) Fort Bonifacio Global City,
Taguig City, Metro Manila; (2) Congressional Avenue, Bago-Bantay, Quezon City;
(3) Aseana Business Park, Brgy. Tambo, Paranaque City; and (4) Westgate, Filinvest
Alabang, Muntinlupa City, including all the furniture, fixtures and equipment
presently situated therein.

Under the contract, the Consignor offered to consign goods at the aforesaid four (4)
stores and the Consignee accepted the offer subject but not limited to the terms and
conditions stated as follows:

= The Consignee hereby grants to the Consignor the right to consign, display and
offer for sale, and sell goods and merchandise as normally offered for sale by
Consignee, at the selling areas at the four (4) stores.

= The Consignor shall give the Consignee a trade or volume discount of its gross
sales.

= The proceeds of sale of the Consignor shall remain the sole property of the
Consignor and shall be kept by the Consignee strictly as money in trust until
remitted to the Consignor after deducting the amounts due to the Consignee.

= The term of the contract shall be for a period of five (5) years beginning on the
date/s of the signing of the agreement or of the opening of the four (4) stores
whichever is later, renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties.

= For and in consideration of the consignment/concession right granted, the
consignor gives the consignee a trade or volume discount in the amount
equivalent to five percent (5%) of the consignee’s gross sales which was
increased to fifteen percent (15%) on November 9, 2006. On January 1, 2011, the
contract was further amended giving the consignee a trade or volume discount of
ten percent (10%) of the consignee’s gross sales.

On February 23, 2012, a new agreement was made between the Consignor and
Consignee. Under the new agreement, the Consignor offered to consign goods at the
aforesaid four (4) stores and the Consignee accepted the offer subject but not limited
to the terms and conditions stated as follows:

®* The Consignor shall pay the Consignee four percent (4%) monthly
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consignment/concession fee based on the Consignor’s monthly gross sales.

® Goods sold by the consignor shall be checked-out and paid at the check-out
counters of and be manned and operated by the Consignor and issued receipts
through the point-of-sale (POS) machines in the name of the Consignor. The
proceeds of the sale are and shall remain as the sole property of the Consignor
subject to its obligation to pay the consideration stipulated.

= Ownership of the goods delivered to the Consignor at the stores shall remain
with the Consignor. Except for the right of Consignee to the payment of the
consideration in the amount, manner and within the periods stipulated.

= The Consignment/Concession Contract shall be for a period of five (5) years
beginning on March 1, 2012, renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties.

c. Other Significant Transactions

These pertain to purchases and sale of merchandise, rent income, security deposits
paid, repairs and maintenance, utilities, communications, management fee and
employee benefits which are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and due and
demandable. The Group has not made any allowance for impairment losses relating
to receivables from related parties as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015.
This assessment is undertaken annually by management through examination of the
financial position of related parties and the market in which they operate.

d. Royalty Agreement

On August 15, 2011, the Group (“licensee”) entered into a license agreement with a
stockholder (“licensor”) for its use of trademark and logo. The licensee will pay the
licensor royalties in an amount equivalent to 1/20 of 1% of net sales for the period of
thirty (30) years, renewable upon mutual written consent of the parties. These royalty
fees and payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and due and demandable.

22. Retirement Benefits Liability

The Parent Company has an unfunded, noncontributory, defined benefit plan covering all
of its permanent employees. Contributions and costs are determined in accordance with
the actuarial studies made for the plan. Annual cost is determined using the projected
unit credit method. The Group’s latest actuarial valuation date is December 31, 2015.
Valuations are obtained on a periodic basis.

Salient Provisions of the Retirement Plan

Normal Retirement (Minimum Retirement Law, RA 7641)

The plan provides retirement benefits under Republic Act No. 7641 (the Act) upon
compulsory retirement at the age of sixty five (65) or upon optional retirement at age
sixty (60) or more but not more than age sixty five (65) with at least five (5) years in
service. The benefits as required by the Act are equivalent to at least one-half month (1/2)
month salary for every year of service, a fraction of at least six (6) months being
considered as one (1) whole year. The term one-half (1/2) month salary shall mean:
(a) 50% of the pay salary; (b) one-twelfth (1/12) of the thirteenth (13th) month pay; and
(c) one-twelfth (1/12) cash equivalent of not more than five (5) days of service incentive
leaves.
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The reconciliation of the liability recognized in the statements of financial position is as
follows:

September December

2016 2015

Present value of defined benefit obligation P465,327,210  P465,327,210
Fair value of lan assets 25,455,537 25,455,537
Retirement benefits liability P439,871,673  P439,871,673

The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing
balances for present value of defined benefit obligation:

September December
2016 2015
Balance at be innin of eriod P465,327,210 P419,338,336
Included in Profit or Loss
Current service cost 86,869,563
Interest cost 18,802,184
105,671,747
Included in other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements loss (gain):
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Financial assumptions (61,216,545)
Ex erience ad ustment 1,533,672
(59,682,873)
Balance at end of period P465,327,210  P465,327,210

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

September December

2016 2015

Beginning of the year P25,455,537 P25,000,000

Interest income - 1,122,500
Contributions during the year -

Remeasurement loss 666,963

End of the year P25,455,537 P25,455,537

The movements of actuarial losses, before deferred income taxes recognized in other
comprehensive income are as follows:

September December
2016 2015
Remeasurements of retirement liability at
beginning of year P929,780 P59,945,690
Actuarial loss (gain) due to increase in defined
benefit obli ation 59,015,910
Remeasurements of retirement liability at end of
year P929,780 P929.780
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The cumulative remeasurements of retirement benefits liability, net of deferred income
taxes, amounted to P0.65 million as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, as
presented in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

The Company’s plan assets consist of the following:

December

2015

Cash in banks P18,853,459
Debt instruments - government bonds 6,528,968
Trust fees payable (12,727)
Other 85,837
P25,455,537

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

December 2015

Discount rate 4.89%
Future sala increases 9.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and
mortality tables.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period is 26.3 years.

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below:

2016
Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (P55,684,579) P50,070,316
Future sala increase rate 1% movement 54,281,683 43,277,285

It should be noted that the changes assumed to be reasonably possible at the valuation
date are open to subjectivity, and do not consider more complex scenarios in which
changes other than those assumed may be deemed to be more reasonable.

These defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk,
interest rate risk, and market (investment) risk.

Fundin Arran ements

Since the Group does not have a formal retirement plan, funding to the plan are paid by
the Group when needed.
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Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2016
Carrying Contractual Within
Amount  Cash Flows 1 Year
Defined benefit
obligation P465,327.210 P86,522.673 P12,059.433

Within Within
1-5Years S 10 Years

P19,337,430 P55,125,810

On February 17, 2014, the Parent Company entered into a multi-employer retirement
plan agreement with a trust company. The Parent Company made an initial cash

contribution of P25 million pesos.

The Group does not expect to contribute to the plan in 2016.

23. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense for the periods ended September 30 are as

follows:
2016 2015
Current tax expense P1,630,213,343 P1,434,396,404
Deferred tax benefit (86,506,415 89,106,208

P1,543,706,928 P1,345,290,196

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to
the actual income tax expense as shown in profit or loss for the periods ended September

30 is as follows:

2016 2015
Income before income tax P5,188,777,980 1’4.548.076.810
Income tax expense at the
statutory income tax rate:
30% P1,541,293,247 P1,351,653,633
5% 2,556,691 2,623,188
Income tax effects of:
Non-deductible other expenses 2,841,053 108,030
Non-deductible interest expense 363,023 699,541
Changes in unrecognized
DTA/DTL 527,651
Dividend income subjected to
final tax (254,997) (267,777)
Interest income subjected to
final tax (2,764,387) (4,812,178)
Non-taxable income 855 353 4,714,241

P1,543,706,928 P1,345,290,196
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The components of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities (DTL) net of deferred tax assets
(DTA) in respect to the following temporary differences are shown below:

Se tember 2016 December 2015
Amount DTA DTL Amount DTA DTL

Accrued rent expense* P2,770,642,123 P831,192,637 P2,478,843,164 P743,652,948
Retirement benefits

liability 463,941,893 139,182,568 463,941,893 139,182,568
NOLCO 26,105,892 7,831,768
Allowance for

impairment losses on

receivables 7,462,327 2,238,698 7,462,327 2,238,698
Actuarial losses 929,780 278,934 929,780 278,934
Reco ition of DTA 389,730 116,919 389,730 116,919
DTA 3,243,365,853 973,009,756 2,977,672,786 893,301,835

Fair value of intangible
assets from business

combination (4,599,113,528) (1,379,734,058) (4,599,113,528) (1,379,734,058)
Accrued rent income 35,332,670 10,599,801 31,918,814 9,575,644
DTL (4,634,446,198) (1,390,333,859) (4,631,032,342) (1,389,309,702)
Net (P1,391,080,345) (P417,324,103) (P1,653,359,556) (P496,007,867)

*Excluding accrued rent expense of PPCI Subic which is subject to SBMA tax rules

The realization of these deferred tax assets is dependent upon future taxable income that
temporary differences and carry forward benefits are expected to be recovered or applied.

Deferred tax asset includes P5.04 million net deferred tax assets transferred by Company
E to the Company as a result of the merger. It includes the following:

Amount DTA DTL

Accrued rent expense P18,086,366 P5,425,910
Accrued rent income 74,892 22,468
Net (P18,011.474) P5,403,442

The Group has unrecognized net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) amounting to P38.43 million and P3.39 million,
respectively. This was transferred through the merger of Gant with the Parent Company.
In December 31, 2015, the remaining balance of NOLCO and MCIT was fully applied
against the taxable income.

24, Equity

Ca ital Stock and Additional Paid-in Ca ital
On June 7, 2011, the BOD approved the issuance of 50,000,000 shares. These were
subscribed and paid in full on June 10, 2011.

The initial public offering of the Parent Company’s shares with an offer price of
P12.50 per share resulted to the issuance of 500,000,000 common shares in 2011. The
additional paid-in capital net of direct transaction costs amounted to P5,168.82 million.

The Parent Company acquired 100% equity interest of Kareila in exchange for the
766,406,250 common shares of the Parent Company’s authorized but unissued capital
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stock on May 28, 2012. The fair value of shares as at the acquisition date is
P21.50 per share. The additional paid-in capital net of direct transaction costs amounted
to P15,661.57 million.

On February 26, 2013, the SEC approved the application for merger of the Parent
Company, PJSI and Gant. As a consideration for the said merger, the Parent Company
paid the owner of PJSI and Gant shares of stocks equivalent to 16,911,162 shares at
P26.55 per share. Considering that the owner of PJSI and Gant is the Parent Company,
16,911,006 of the total shares issued were classified in the Parent Company’s book as
treasury shares.

On March 12, 2015, the SEC approved the application of merger of the Parent Company
and Company E. As a consideration for the said merger, the Parent Company paid the
owner of Company E shares of stocks equivalent to 2,045,465 shares at par value.
Considering that the owner of Company E is the Parent Company, total shares of stocks
issued were classified in the Parent Company’s book as treasury shares.

The Parent Company’s authorized, issued and outstanding common stocks as at
September 30 are as follow:

September December
2016 2015

Authorized - 3,000,000,000 shares (P1 par value)

Issued and outstanding

Balance at beginning of year 2,765,381,406 2,766,306,406
Stock issuances durin the riod 2,045,465
Balance at end of year 2,765,381,406  2,768,351,871
Treasu shares 2,970,465

2,765,381,406  2.765,381.406

On December 18, 2014, the BOD approved to buy back the Parent Company’s shares up
to P1.00 billion or approximately 30.0 million shares within one year from the approval
or until November 4, 2015. As at December 31, 2015, the Parent Company already
bought P37.75 million worth of shares and was classified in the Parent Company’s book
as treasury shares.

Retained Earnin

On December 16, 2013, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of a
regular dividend of P0.20 per share and special dividend of P0.10 per share on record
date of January 6, 2014 and payment date of January 30, 2014. The total amount of
dividend is P829.92 million.

On December 18, 2014, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of a
regular dividend of P0.20 per share and special dividend of P0.10 per share on record
date of January 12, 2015 and payment date of February 5, 2015. The total amount of
dividends is P829.92 million.

On December 18, 2015, the Company’s BOD approved the declaration of a regular
dividend of P0.20 per share and special dividend of P0.10 per share on record date of
January 8, 2016 and payment date of February 18, 2016. The total amount of dividends is
P829.61 million.
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The summary of dividends declared is as follows:

December 31, 2015
Type of Date of Dividend
Dividend Declaration Date of Record Date of Pa ment Amount
Cash December 18, 2015 January §,2016 February 18,2016 P829,614,422
December 31, 2014
Type of Date of Dividend
Dividend Declaration Date of Record Date of Pa ment Amount
Cash December 18, 2014 January 12, 2015 February 5, 2015 P829,921,923

Due to the effect of merger, retained earnings of PJSI and Gant amounting to
P445.29 million formed part of the retained earnings of the Parent Company. PJSI and
Gant were 100% wholly-owned by the Parent Company before merger.

Due to the effect of merger, retained earnings of Company E amounting to P116.89
million formed part of the retained earnings of the Parent Company. Company E was
100% wholly-owned by the Parent Company before merger.

25. Segment Information

The Group operates through stores in several locations. The combined financial
statements of all per stores is reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker on a
monthly basis and assesses the Group’s profitability and financial position of the whole
retail business. The nature of products, class of customers, and regulatory environment is
the same for all the stores.

Accordingly, management has assessed that the Group, as a whole, is considered as a
single business and hence there are no operating segments required to be disclosed under
PERS 8, Operating Segments.

26. Basic/Diluted EPS

Basic/Diluted EPS for the periods ended September 30 is computed as follows:

2016 2015
Net income (a) P3,645,071,052 P3,202,786,614
Wei hted avera e number of ordina  shares (b) 2,765,381,406 2,766,779,894
Basic/diluted EPS (a/b) P1.32 P1.16

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group has no dilutive debt or
equity instruments.
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27. Financial Risk and Capital Management Objectives and Policies

Ob’ectives and Policies
The Group has significant exposure to the following financial risks primarily from its use
of financial instruments:

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

= Interest Rate Risk

Other Market Price Risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and the
Group’s management of capital.

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents and
investments in trading securities. These financial instruments are used to fund the
Group’s operations and capital expenditures.

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s
risk management framework. They are responsible for developing and monitoring the
Group’s risk management policies.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. All risks faced by the
Group are incorporated in the annual operating budget. Mitigating strategies and
procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably occur so as not to affect
the Group’s operations and detriment forecasted results. The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Group would incur if credit customers and
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations.

Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit is not extended beyond
authorized limits. Credit granted is subject to regular review, to ensure it remains
consistent with the customer’s credit worthiness and appropriate to the anticipated
volume of business.

Receivable balances are being monitored on a regular basis to ensure timely execution of
necessary intervention efforts.

The credit risk for due from related parties and security deposits was considered

negligible since these accounts have high probability of collection and there is no current
history of default.
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Financial information on the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without
considering the effects of collaterals and other risk mitigation techniques is presented

below.
September December
Note 2016 2015
Cash in banks and cash equivalents 4 P611,989,407 P5,510,528,836
Receivables — net 5 2,730,829,277 2,683,095,896
Securi de osits* 12 1,376,051,007 1,279,453,908
P4,718,869,691 P9.473,078,640
*Included under noncurrent assets.
The following is the aging analysis per class of financial assets:
September 2016 Neither Past Due but not Im
Past Due 1t030 31to 60 More than
nor ImHaired Da s Da s 60Da s Im aired Total
Cash in bank and cash
equivalents P611,989,407 P - P - P - P - P611,989,407
Receivables 1,471,867,739 507,206,857 247,725,497 504,029,184 7,462,327 2,738,291,604
Securi de sits 1,376,051,007 - - - 1,376,051,007
P3,459,908,153 507,206,857 247,725,497 P504,029,184 P7,462,327 P4,726,332,018
December 2015 Neither Past Due but not Im aired
Past Due 11030 31060  More than 60
nor Im aired Da s Da s Da s
Cash in bank and cash
equivalents P5,510,528,836 P - P - P - P - P5,510,528,836
Receivables 1,446,116,202 498,377,580 243391336 495,210,778 7,462,327 2,690,558,223
Securi de sits 1279 453 908 - - - - 1279 453 908
P8,236,098,946 P498377,580 P243,391,336 P195.210,778 P7,462,327 P9,480,540,967

The Group has assessed the credit quality of the following financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired as high grade:

a.

Li uidi

Cash in bank and cash equivalents were assessed as high grade since these are
deposited in reputable banks with good credit standing, which have a low
profitability of insolvency and can be withdrawn anytime. The credit quality of these
financial assets is considered to be high grade.

Trade receivables were assessed as high grade since majority of trade receivables are
credit card transactions and there is no current history of default. Non-trade
receivables from suppliers relating to rental, display allowance and concession and
advances to contractors were assessed as high grade since these are automatically
deducted from the outstanding payables to suppliers and contractors. Advances to
employees were assessed as high grade as these are paid through salary deductions
and have a high probability of collections.

Due from related parties and security deposits were assessed as high grade since
these have a high profitability of collection and there is no history of default.

Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The Group manages liquidity risk by forecasting projected cash flows
and maintaining balance between continuity of funding and flexibility in operations.
Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is maintained
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to cover daily operational working capital requirements. Management closely monitors
the Group’s future and contingent obligations and sets up required cash reserves as
necessary in accordance with internal requirements.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated
interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

As at Se tember 30, 2016

More than
Carrying Contractual 1 Year 1 Year - More than
Amount Cash Flow or Less 5 Years 5 Years
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses*® P5,907,191,748 P5,907,191,748 P5,907,191,748 P - P -
Short-term loans payable 3,687,500,000 3,746,830,279 3,746,830,279 - -
Due to related parties 29,940,868 29,940,868 29,940,868
Long-term debt including
current portion 2,516,578,877 2,600,706,251 134,104,079  2,466,602,172
Other current liabilities** 140,252,579 140,252,579 140,252,579 - -
Noncurrent accrued rent 2,794,687,694 2,794,687,694 36,394,919 328,883,895  2,429,408,880

*excluding statutory payables to the government
**¢xcluding promotion fund, loyalty and rewards, gift cheques VAT payable and other current liabilities of Kareila

As at December 31 2015

More than
Carrying Contractual 1 Year 1 Year - More than
Amount Cash Flow or Less 5 Years S Years
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses* P9,621,952,021 P9,621,952,021 P9,621,952,021 P P
Short-term loans payable 3,137,500,000 3,145,362,083 3,145,362,083 - -
Due to related parties 29,769,412 29,769,412 29,769,412
Long-term debt including
current portion 2,965,062,298 2,739,969,202 640,413,646  2,099,555,556
Other current liabilities** 140,838,219 140,838,219 140,838,219 - -
Noncurrent accrued rent 2492888910 2492 888910 18,684 176 272574829 2,201 629905

*excluding statutory payables to the government
**oxcluding promotion fund, loyalty and rewards, gift cheques VAT payable and other current liabilities of Kareila

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow
interest rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on interest
earned on cash deposits in banks. Cash deposits with variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk since its short
and long-term loans with fixed rates are carried at amortized cost. The Group’s policy is
to obtain the most favorable interest available without increasing its foreign currency
exchange exposure.

The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as
follows:

September December
2016 2015

Financial assets (cash deposits):
Cash in banks P500,903,609 P1,577,093,521
Mone market lacement 111,085,798 3,933,435,315

P611,989,407 P5.510.528.836

Sensitivity Analysis
A 2% increase in interest rates would have increased equity and net income by P0.86
million and P7.71 million, for the periods ended September 30, 2016 and December 31,
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2015, respectively. A 2% decrease in interest rates would have had the equal but opposite
effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Other Market Price Risk

The Group’s market price risk arises from its investments in trading securities carried at
fair value. The Group manages its risk arising from changes in market price by
monitoring the changes in the market price of the investments.

Ca ital Mana ement

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of shareholders’
investment and maintain steady growth by applying free cash flow to selective
investments. The Group set strategies with the objective of establishing a versatile and
resourceful financial management and capital structure.

The Group’s President has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion
to risk. Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the Group’s external
environment and the risks underlying the Group’s business operations and industry.

The Group defines capital as paid-up capital, additional paid-in capital, remeasurements
and retained earnings as shown in the statements of financial position.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed requirements.

28. Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of Company’s financial instruments approximate their fair values
as at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values of each class
of financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Short-term Investments, Receivables and Security Deposits
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and
receivables approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturities of these
financial instruments. In the case of security deposits, the difference between the carrying
amounts and fair values is considered immaterial by management.

Investments in Trading Securities and Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

The fair values of publicly traded instruments and similar investments are based on
quoted market prices in an active market. For debt instruments with no quoted market
prices, a reasonable estimate of their fair values is calculated based on the expected cash
flows from the instruments discounted using the applicable discount rates. Unquoted
equity securities and derivative instruments linked to unquoted stock are carried at cost
less impairment.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses, Short-term Loans, Due to Related Parties,
Other Current Liabilities and Noncurrent Accrued Rent

The carrying amounts of accounts payable and accrued expenses, due to related parties,

and short-term loans approximate fair value due to the relatively short-term maturities of

these financial instruments. The difference between the carrying amounts and fair values

of noncurrent accrued rent and other current liabilities is considered immaterial by

management.
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Long-term Loans including Current Maturities

The fair value of interest-bearing fixed rate loans is based on the discounted value of
expected future cash flows using the applicable market rates for similar types of
instruments as at reporting date. Effective rates used in 2016 and 2015 range from 3.50%
t0 3.61%.

Fair Value Hierarch
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.
The different levels have been defined as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group’s investment in trading
securities were measured based on Level 1 classification and available for sale financial
assets were carried at cost since the fair value cannot be determined reliably in the
absence of any market data.

As at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group has not introduced any
movement among Levels 1, 2 and 3 classifications.

29. Reclassification of Accounts

Certain accounts in 2015 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the
2016 financial statements presentation as follows:

Se tember 2015

As Previously
Presented Reclassification As Reclassified
Statement of Profit or Loss
Cost of sales P56,382,211,158 (P291,302,250) P56,090,908,908
Other o eratin income 2,352,131,586 291,302,250 2,060,829,536
(P54,030,079,572) P - P54,030,079,372
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